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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Pursuant to Chapter 36 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM
Listing Rules’) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’), the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC’) regulates First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company’) in relation to the
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange. The SFC, The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief that: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive; (ij) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and
are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTE R ®E

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2012, the Hong Kong stock market was still volatile
as influenced by the external environment. Getting the inflow of hot
money in Hong Kong, stock market became upward again in the
second half of 2012. Affected by the quantitative easing policies in
United States and national policies in China, investors were cautious
in investment and the stock market was fluctuating.

The Group had an adoption of a New Share Option Scheme in
compliance with Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules, in which was
approved by the shareholders at the 2012 Annual General Meeting.
Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and the parties
working for the interest of the Group with an opportunity to obtain
equity interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with the
interest of the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive to
work better for the interest of the Group.

As the real estate market in Hong Kong remains buoyant recently and
the investment property of our Group has been appreciated
significantly, the Board holds the view that the Disposal of the
Property on favorable market conditions can realize capital gain and
enhance the working capital of the Group, which is in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders. In February 2013, the
consideration of the investment property was HK$56 milion. The
Group recorded a gain on disposal of approximately HK$13.2 million
after deducting an estimated cost of property and other related costs
and expenses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total turnover of approximately HK$10.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 as compared to approximately
HK$12.7 milion for the previous year, there was a decrease of
approximately HK$2.3 million or of approximately 18.1%. The drastic
downturn of securities broking business was mainly attributable to the
decreasing turnover of Hong Kong securities market as a result of
investors’ conservative attitude. Therefore, income derived from
securities broking decreased sharply.

Loss for the year of approximately HK$39.4 million is similar to the
corresponding year. The loss of the year encompassed impairments
of goodwill, intangible assets, trade receivables and other receivables
as well as written down of inventories. They totaled approximately
HK$9.4 milion (2011 : HK$4.7 million). Its effect is counteracted by
the effect from decrease in the employee benefits expenses and other
operating expenses in the year under review.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTE R ®E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$98.1 million as at 31 December 2012, representing
a decrease of HK$38.9 million, or 28.4% from that of 31 December
2011. The decrease was mainly attributed to the loss for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2012 amounting
to approximately HK$3.6 milion (2011: HK$44.8 milion). As at 31
December 2012, the Group’s cash and bank balance are
approximately HK$20.4 million (2011: HK$46.3 million) of which
approximately HK$5.8 million were held on behalf of clients in trust
and segregated accounts. As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s
total borrowings amounted to approximately HK$33.1 million (2011:
HK$36.3 million). Of this, approximately HK$3.3 million is repayable
within one year. The borrowings were secured by charges over the
Group’s investment property, land and building as well as corporate
guarantees issued by the Company. Taking into account of the
amount of liquid assets in hand, the Board is of the view that the
Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing operational
requirements.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from its
normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flows generated from business transactions locally. As at the
end of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged
foreign exchange exposure or interest rate mismatch.

Capital Structure

As at the end of 2012, the total number of the Company’s shares
was 4,028,964,120 shares. The Company had issued an aggregate of
800,000,000 unlisted but transferrable warrants. The exercise in full of
these warrants would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 800,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTE R ®E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Stock Information and Research Services

The total fee income of the stock information and research services
unit has decreased to approximately HK$4.9 milion for the year,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.6 million or of
approximately 10.9% compared with that of last year; this unit
reported an operating loss before income tax expenses of
approximately HK$19.5 million, representing an increase of loss of
approximately HK$1.0 million or of approximately 5.4% compared with
that of last year. It was mainly attributable to tightened policy of the
PRC government on regulating the securities and investment
consultancy sector of the PRC in which the Group operated, which is
relatively less favourable to foreign enterprise’s participation.

Brokerage and Trading Platform

Total turnover of this unit recorded was approximately HK$4.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012, compared with approximately
HK$7.1 million for the same period last year. The unit recorded a loss
of approximately HK$4.3 million compared with a loss of approximately
HK$3.4 million for the corresponding period. The loss has increased
due to weak retail equity market sentiment during the year under
review.

Wealth Management Services

Since the market is poor, being affected by external factors, the total
fee income of the wealth management division decreased to
approximately HK$0.1 million for the year from approximately HK$0.3
million for the same period last year. This unit recorded an insignificant
profit for the year.

Corporate Finance Services
This segment remained inactive during the year under review.

Property Investments

Rental income derived from leasing one of the Group’s properties.
The income amounted to approximately HK$1.2 million for the year.
This unit recorded a profit of approximately HK$5.6 million for the
year, representing an increase of approximately HK$4.3 million
compared with that of last year.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Investment properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$83.7 milion (2011: HK$80.9 million)
were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTE R ®E

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2011: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

There was no other material acquisition/disposal which would have
been required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules for the
year under review. At present, the Group has no concrete plans for
any material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a workforce of 74
employees (2011: 114). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to about HK$13.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$16.8 million).

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an annual basis
and commensurate with the industry pay level. The remuneration
package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical benefits and
discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a new share option
scheme as an added incentive for its employees. During the year, the
Company had not granted any new share option to any director or
employee.

OUTLOOK

Since our Group has extra working capital from disposal of the
investment property, it may provide more funding for our margin
financing and securities dealing business.

In order to provide more financial service to customers, the Group
has been prepared to resume futures trading operations. And we
have successfully been granted license of futures trading from the
regulatory body to enhance our business potential in futures trading in
addition to the present stock brokerage business.

In addition, the Group shall try to identify and develop new investment
opportunities to enhance the profitability and the shareholders’ value
of the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group remains positive and optimistic about the
prospects of Hong Kong stock market. We will continue to closely
monitor the changes in the market.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTE R ®E

OUTLOOK (continueq)
| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board

Lee Yiu Sun

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEANEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Wenming, aged 50, is the Director and Chief Executive
Officer of HEBHFEMORY)BER AR (First China Securities
Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) (“First China Shenzhen”), one of
China’s leading stock information services companies. Prior to that,
Mr. Wang had established () #YITEEREBR A (Shenzhen
Guangxin Investment Co., Ltd) which is an investment company, (i) 7~
IEBEEEM AR AT (Shenzhen Wealth Aliance Networking Co.,
BBR72E] (Shenzhen Sky Picture Communications Co., Ltd) which is
an audio and video production company. Since the appointment of
Mr. Wang Wenming as the Director of First China Shenzhen, under
his leadership, First China Shenzhen has achieved growing revenue,
profits, and industry recognition. As a result, First China Shenzhen
was selected by the Futian District Government of the Shenzhen
Municipality as one of “Shenzhen Futian District's Top 100 Taxpaying
Enterprises” in 2003 and 2004 with annual tax payment of over
RMB10,000,000. Due to Mr. Wang’s excellent capability and great
contribution to the Shenzhen Municipality, he has been elected as a
Congressman of the 4 term of the People’s Congress for Shenzhen
Municipality, and Deputy Chairman of both the Enterprise Alliance
Association and the Entrepreneur Association of Futian District of
Shenzhen Municipality, China since 2005. In 2006, Mr. Wang was
also selected by the Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee as
“Entrepreneur that Supports Party’s Development”.

Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, aged 55, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and joined the Group in May 2000. Mr. Lee has over 20
years of experience in the securities and financial service sector.
Starting from 1998, Mr. Lee is the committee member of Election
Committee of Hong Kong for Legislative Council and Chief Executive.
Since 2009, Mr. Lee is being the committee member of Guangdong’s
Association for Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong
Kong & Macao, the Perm. Honorary President of Hong Kong
Securities Association. Mr. Lee was formerly the Managing Director of
Celestial Asia Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. Lee was a Council
Member of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1997 to
1999 and a Committee Member of the Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society from 1994 to 1999. Mr. Lee was also the member
of the Banking and Financial Services Training Board of Vocational
Training Centre in Hong Kong from 2000 to 2007 and the member of
Investors Education Advisory Committee of Securities and Futures
Commission from 2008 to 2010. He was the member of Financial
Services Advisory Committee of Trade Development Council from
2008 to 2012 and the Chairman of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers
Association from 2007 to 2009. Mr. Lee holds a Master of Arts
Degree in Accounting and Finance, and is an associate member of
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEANEREE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 39, obtained Bachelor Degree from
Department of Chinese of Nankai University in 1996 and world
economy postgraduate diploma from Jilin University in 2002. He also
holds qualifications of economist, registered securities investment
consulting analyst and registered insurance broker issued by various
professional organizations in China. For the past 13 years, Mr. Liu has
held different positions in various financial media institutions and
financial services institutions in Mainland China. During his tenure from
1998 to 2002 as a responsible person for marketing the newspaper
“Securities  Times”, he participated in establishing the “Panorama
Network” (www.pbw.net), a well known securities website in China
and acted as its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted as
consultant in establishing and operating the program “Securities
Times” produced by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007,
he served as “Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange
Shenzhen Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in
setting up and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program
regarding securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was
elected as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock
Exchange” in 2004. Mr. Liu had 13 years of management experience
in financial multimedia platform and financial services industry in China.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tony | Tong, aged 45, is presently a director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee at First China Financial Network 8123. Mr. Tong
currently also serves as Consultant of Guangdong Dena Law Firm and
Director of Shenzhen Dena Management Consulting Co. Ltd. Mr. Tong
graduated from the University of Minnesota with a Bachelor Degree in
Mechanical-Industrial Engineering. Previously Mr. Tong served as
Consultant at Andersen Consulting (now known as Accenture), Adjunct
Professor at the University of Minnesota USA, and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tong is the inventor of “Internet
Work Flow System” (US Patent Number 6,012,066) and is a frequent
speaker on technology investment. Mr. Tong has over 20 years of
experience in management consulting, financing and technology
investment in USA and China. He is co-founder of Pacific Financial
Services Ltd and PacificnetVentures.com, a renowned venture capital
investor in China. Mr. Tong was CEO and director of Pacificnet
(Nasdaq listed) from 2000 to 2007, and an independent non-executive
director and a member of the Audit Committee of Garron International
Limited (HKSE stock code: 1226) from 2007 to 2010. Mr. Tong was
named “Asian Gaming 50” by Inside Asian Gaming Magazine in 2008.
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Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 55, graduated from Shanghai Maritime
University with a bachelor degree in accounting. He also received a
Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius College of
Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 20-year experience working in the field of
accounting and corporate finance and has substantial experience in
management in various listed companies, investment business,
investor relations and project management. He was the senior
manager of both the Investment Department and Finance Department
of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998 to June 2000.
He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost Corporation from
1999 to 2003. From April 2003 to February 2004, he was a General
Manager Investor Relations in China Resources Power Holdings Co.,
Ltd. He has been a Director of Concord Investment Holdings Limited
since 2004.

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 73, graduated with a Bachelor
Degree from the Faculty of Engineering Physics of the Tsinghua
University in 1965. He was a Vvisiting scholar in the Brookhaven
National Laboratory of USA and the Stuttgart University of Germany.
He was the vice director of the Tsinghua University R&D department
and the general manager of Tsinghua University Science and
Technology Corporation. During the period from 1999 to 2002, he
held various senior positions in two companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, namely Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua
Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation. He was the chairman and
legal representative of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group
Corporation and president of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he
left these companies in 2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour
(Group) Corporation in 2002 and was its president until 2004.
Professor Zhang is currently the general vice president and secretary
of the Beijing Non-Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs
Association. With his remarkable business leadership as well as
exploratory initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous
contribution to the companies he worked for. He has not only gained
compliments from the society at large, but has also won a series of
honors. In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the “Hong
Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and the
“Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-Governmental
Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association. In 2002, he was
selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village Outstanding
Entrepreneurs”. Prof Zhang is currently an independent director of
Beijing Lanxum Technology Co., Ltd (a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300010).
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Mr. Chen Shu Wen, aged 58, graduated from E1LEf4E K2 (Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics) with a bachelor degree in
Economics and obtained a master degree and a phD in Economics
from FHMAEE (Jilin University). He is a qualified PRC lawyer currently
practising at BEEXAZEMMEFT (Liaoning Tianhe Law Firm). Mr.
Chen has substantial management and leadership experience serving
in the PRC government. He commenced his career as the Deputy
County Chief (of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning
Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the Director (E1T) of AEMEL
EREHINEZLZE® (Benxi City Commission for Restructuring the
Economic Systems) from 1995. He was the Director General (1) of
REMEHIMESEE SHEELZEE (Benxi Foreign Trade & Economic
Cooperation Committee) from 1998 until 2001. Since 2003, Mr. Chen
has been the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at AiEIE
T REEEEBRE (Faculty of Management and Economics of Dalian
University of Technology). He is currently a director of & &I E
FRAF] (Yingkou Port Liability Co., Ltd) (Shanghai Stock Exchange
Stock Code: 600317).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on
pages 39 to 40.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for distribution as dividends to its
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles
of Association and a statutory solvency test. In accordance with
Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the Company, dividends
may be declared and paid out of the profits of the Company or from
any reserves set aside from profits which the Directors determine to
be no longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared or paid out of share premium
account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
was HK$Nil as at 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Wenming (Chairman)
Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Liu Runtong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Tony | Tong

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

In accordance with Articles 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Tony | Tong and Mr. Li Jianxing will retire from office
by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the remaining Directors
shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

1 4 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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EEERSG

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND EER{THABNAATIRG « HEKRS
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES REHZEBRLE

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the RZZE——F+-_FA=+—H BFEKAQT
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying THAREAR QA Bk E T BB EZE(FER
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated & MEIEEFIFEXVER) 2Bk ~ HBEKG &
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were &5 - AR IEE S M EFIEXVEET
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to N 8D EFE A& AR B L 2 AR
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short (B IEREESFLASIENERIEXRERE
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such  {EEIRVEHEA ZHEFIAR) » SRR B H L H
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section — E1§fI28 352 {F AR SN ZIEFTAl EE Az
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or HERFOAR @ HIRIEAIZEIR ETRAIFE 5462
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM  5.67 I§ZBM& AR 5 KB fr 2 R sk & 1N
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, T

were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company (@) MREATIRHBZETE

Number of shares

& E

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of

Name of Director Interests Interests Total shareholding
EENS BN A TR HE BEsiEE
Wang Wenming (Note 1) FExPA(KIsE1) 595,328,957 — 595,328,957 14.78%
Lee Yiu Sun =y 110,060,000 — 110,060,000 2.73%
Liu Runtong 214 2,646,000 — 2,646,000 0.07%

Note: PREE -

1) Mr. Wang Wenming held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen (1) T XRREA#HA 450,212,307 BRAN R A%
Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming, held 145,116,650 shares of B ENPEEZEBRLELLFS
the Company. As such, Mr. Wang Wenming was deemed to be interested 145,116,650 RA A Ak fH o Bt - £
in 595,328,957 shares of the Company. H AR A5 595,328,957 IR A A AR

2 -
(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) WREAFEERGBZEE

() Share option scheme of the Company ()  ARABRETE
Since the share option scheme adopted by the Company %QEWZZE%*i‘T':ﬂ +tEI
on 17 December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) PR 2 R Rk AT 8 ([ & A AE ST
has expired on 16 December 2011. The Company ENDER=E—F+=A+H
adopted a new share option scheme on its AGM held on JEiw  H5h ZJX/%EE/\\\::E_:E
21 June 2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which NAZT—BRTZRRBFAE
complies with Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules. RN T A AR EMRAISE23F

2 B A e Et &l (T 37 B8 AR 4 5t
gl o

BEMERKXEEERLAR —ZT—"FFH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

EERITHAERNRAAE G « ARG
RfaHZEERIRE(E)

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MAATHEERERKBZIFE(E)
(continued)
() Share option scheme of the Company (continued) ) AL EJERESZI(E)

TREESERITHARNEE"
T——F+-A=+—HILFEFR
FAAREARLNRRN 2 Bk

The following table discloses the details of the share
options held by the Directors and chief executive to
subscribe for shares of the Company during the vyear

16

ended 31 December 2012: (]
Number of share options
fRRIEYE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
asat  Granted Exercised lapsed as at
1 January during the during the during the 31 December Exercise price
Name of Directors Date of grant 2012 year year year 2012  Option period (HKS)
RZ%-=% RZ%-=%
—-A-H FmEHE +-A=t+-H e
EEZH RHBH HATHE FARE  ERTR V&S EATHE  FERENR (&)
Wang Wenming 13/04/2010 11,682,577 - - - 11,682,577 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
EXH —R-TFNA+=AR “Z-ZFNA+=AZE
“Z-ZFPNA+-A
Lee Yiu Sun 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
TR “2-ZFPNA+=H “2-ZFNA+=HE
St 2015yl =
Lee Yiu Sun 05/09/2007 4,248,210 - - - 4248210  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 0.215
TR “RREFNARA “ZRTHFENAREZE
“E—tFENARA
Liu Runtong 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
21 —2-TFNA+=R “Z-ZFNAT=RAZE
2 ZENA+-H
Zhang Benzheng  13/04/2010 2,124,105 - - - 2,124,105  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
RAIE “Z2-TFNA+=R “Z2-ZFNAT=AZE
“E-ZFPNA+T-H

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

(i)

Agreement and Subscription Agreement involving granting
of share options

Pursuant to the Agreement dated 11 July 2007 and the
Supplementary Agreement dated 30 July 2007 relating to
the acquisition of the entire shareholding of GoHi Holdings
Limited (collectively the “Agreements”), the Company
granted to Mr. Wang Wenming an option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price
of HK$0.15 per share in each of the 12-month periods
ending 30 June 2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively (i.e. a
maximum of 60,000,000 shares) subject to the fulfilment
of certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreements.

With the fulfilment of the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2008, an option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares was granted to Mr. Wang Wenming
who exercised the options and was allotted 20,000,000
shares on 15 January 2009. With the fulfillment of the
said conditions for the 12-month period 30 June 2009,
another option to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares was
granted to Mr. Wang Wenming who exercised the option
and was allotted 20,000,000 shares on 26 February 2010.
Since the said conditions for the 12-month period 30
June 2010 was not fulfilled, accordingly, pursuant to the
aforesaid Agreements, the remaining option to subscribe
for 20,000,000 shares of the Company was not granted
and has lapsed as at 31 December 2011.

BENEEKREEARLT

EERITHAERNRAAE G « ARG
RfaHZHEERIRE(E)

(b)

RAATHEERG 238 (&)

(i)

HRIBLBIRIEZ 155 R B0

BEAHS R AT LFLA+
—BRER-_ZZTLFLA=THEH
U BEGoHi Holdings Limited 2 &A%
W2 e ki (RE 250
#) o ARBIAIXAALERTE
PekE - AR EHETRIRZE T
IRHEERE - DRIREZE=
NF - ZETNFRZZT-—TFR
AZ+BLSE+—EAHM &
TEESFROOISETLRE
20,000,000 AR AR S (Bl&%
/60,000,0000% ) °

MR Ll EBEEE — ST \F XA
=+ Bttt AR Rz ETI&HE
LEER - AARIEREXRREE
% AT 328% 20,000,000 A% A% 15 2 B
R HER-ETNE—F+H
B 17130 B A A I & RR 2% 20,000,000
fEf&n - AR LM EEEE—TF
NEARA=tTHIE+—EAHMZ
BT IEHEEER - ARRIB BT
mMEXHEERD T RBE
20,000,000 %A% 17 2 FER%#E - K E
RZZE—ZTF-A =+ HITERE
RS AE I #ERE 2% 20,000,000 % {5 ©
HR e @EEE —T—ZTF/NA
=t+HBIEt+=ER Rz E T &EHE
mAREER - At RIRRTI 2 2
Tﬁmi«t # T 7] 7285 20,000,000 A% Z<

RAEIIRH 2 AR AR - WE
R=ZF——F+=-_A=+—HX
R e
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

18

(b)

(c)

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b)
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

EERITHAERNRAAE G « ARG
RfaHZEERIRE(E)

RAATHEERG 238 (&)

B E X BEESN - AR A SHEAE(AIN B
RNARFAEMA BB BT L EA %
BE BEEERITRARAEBEB AN
AR SRR E AR A B 88 2 Bt sl EH
B (BEER)MERZ  TEES 17
AR IARESB BB T /R
AT FRBBETAAIRBARAEFESFLZ
NN EFRITEAE MR SRR -

Short positions in underlying shares of the Company () MEAATHEHERMBZRE
Number of shares
R EE
Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage of
Name of Director Interest Interest shareholding
EEHE BN AR #MOBRaESLH
Lee Yiu Sun (Note 2) 50,000,000 — 1.24%
EE (Mfak2)
Note: Bi5E

2) Pursuant to an option deed dated 31 August 2005, Asia Network Holdings
Limited entered into an option deed with Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (“Mr. Lee”)
whereby Mr. Lee granted Asia Network Holdings Limited an option to
purchase all or part of his 50,000,000 shares in the Company at such
time and such price when Mr. Lee intends to transfer or dispose of all or
part of the shares to any person during the period commencing on 31
August 2005 till the date when Mr. Lee ceases to be interested in the
shares.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(c)

Short positions in underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) are
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register referred to therein; or (i) are required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2012, the following persons (not being a Director of the
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

(a)

Long positions in shares of the Company

EERITHAERNRAAE G « ARG
RfaHZHEERIRE(E)

(©) WMEATEEMERGZRE(E)

Br EXCEREIN  RAFE  HEESR
B NYNCIESHIEE 4 AVIN/NE) = =l
E(ExALFHFRIEEMEXVE) 2’
n - RERMDSES T EE R AR
BERERSSAR - MOREEFRGE
IEBIEEXVEE 7 K8 DB BMEARAR K
G AT (BIEFEREESMBEENAE
I EESRRBHA 2 s Mk
2 (i) IRIRE A R B E 5558 352 fi
ERCARZIEFT LB e ¢ 3k (i) IR IR A%
R ETRBIE 5,46 25,67 IFBME LA
A R BT FT o

FERRREMALTRAEATRRSG R
I 2 EmRiRE

BARTEENM  R-E——F+- A=+
— B - RREES R 2 336 K FE Y
M - THALQEEAATEE)R
RO SABBRG - B ERE S R
FIEXVERE2 B35 BH IS AE A A 7 RB R B
2

(@) RELAFKRGBZEFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
IR EZ S BRHEEE #SMORRESL
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 1)  Beneficial owners 595,328,957 14.78%
B LY ES DY) E=EAA
Wang Jia Wei (Note 2) Beneficial owner 202,043,628 5.01%
F=E(MF2) %ot Z=PN

BENKRAKREEABRAR —T—"F 5§
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

(b)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)
Note:
(1) Ms. Chen Dongjin held 145,116,650 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen

Dongijin is the spouse of a director of the Company, Mr. Wang Wenming,
who held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. As such, they were
deemed to be collectively interested in 595,328,957 shares of the
Company.

2 Mr. Wang Jia Wei is the son of Mr. Wang Wenming.

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

FERRREMALTREATRRSG RHEEH
R R RIRE ()

(a)

(b)

REAATRMBZTE(E)

B 5 -

™ PREIEL L4548 145,116,650 R AR A AR
e REAELLTAAARESTENALEY
Bi4® - M XA AE R 450,212,307 IR AR
RERG - Al - BEWRALRFHE
595,328,957 R AN AR

@ ITREEEREXHEELRTF

RAAEHEERRZFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
e S RHEEE #SORRESL
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 3)  Beneficial owners 11,682,577 0.29%

T XA M PRZEE (F15E3) BHEBA
Note:
) Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, Mr. Wang Wenming was granted

on 13 April 2010 share options, the number of shares underlying which
was adjusted on 15 June 2010, to subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of the
Company. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming so they
were deemed to be collectively interested in the share options to subscribe
for 11,682,577 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the
Company had not been notified of any other person (other than
the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company and was required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the issued
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group.
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

(@)

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which
the Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries
or certain other persons may be granted share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated in the Scheme.

Since the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired
on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new share
option scheme on its AGM held on 21 June 2012 (the “New
Share Option Scheme”) which complies with Chapter 23 of
GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme

) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the people
and the parties working for the interest of the Group
with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest
of the Group and thereby providing them with an
incentive to work better for the interest of the
Group.

(i) Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant
share options to () employees of the Company
(whether full-time or part-time) or any of its
subsidiaries or associated companies; (i) Directors
(whether Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) suppliers of goods and/or services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; and (iv) professionals engaged by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY
(continued)

(@) Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)
(1) Summary of the Scheme (continued)

(i) Total number of shares available for issue under the
Schemes
As at 31 December 2012, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Share
Option Scheme was 402,896,412 shares,
representing 10% of the total issued share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company (or its
subsidiary) if this will result in such Ilimit being
exceeded.

(iv)  Maximum entitlernent of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan)
to each participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant of the options shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue, save for those share options already granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

29 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

FABRMBIREFE(E)

(a)

FATERAE ()

(1)

At BIZHIE (E)

(i)

(iv)

ZATEIE T i #7172 R 1548
2
RZE—ZF+ZA=+—
B - RIEERER S H
BT 2R M BEA
402,896,412 % - (k2 EE
BITRAZ210% o

RITEERTIR I Z FTE M R 1T
R AS IR R T AR ST 81T
FrBRERANER M
H AT BB 1T 2 IR
PERRNBEETSFHBARA
T EBEITIRGN 2 830% © 8B
ARISESEBARE - 8
BE A BREREARD
Al (R EMIB AR 2Tt
2R -

K 2mE i ER Ez LR
REBEBRER L AHILE
-+ @A HE 8224
ARITERE X 8 kAR
A fa] H Al BE A A AT 81 (&
BERARBERERES
SRR MASER 2B
EMERT SSERT 2R
REABMEE - HETEE
BARBEETERMDBH
1% EERBEERAFHEE
GIETS: Sl bdueprd 1 e
BRON



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY A ATISHEERERE(Z)

(continued)

(a)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(1)

Summary of the Scheme (continueqd)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

Option Period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period of
not more than ten years to be notified by the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) to each
participant which period of time shall commence on
the date on which an offer of the grant of an option
is accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
accordance with the Scheme and expire on the last
day of such period as determined by the Board.
There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the
Company on acceptance of the option offer as
consideration for the grant and received by the
Company within 14 days from the offer date or
within such offer period of time as may be
determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under
the Scheme is determined by the Board and notified
to each participant and shall be no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five consecutive Trading Days immediately
preceding the date of offer, and (i) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY A ATISHEBRERE(Z)

(continued)

(a)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(1)

2

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited

(a)

FATERAE ()

Annual Report 2012

Summary of the Scheme (continued) (1) ZEtEIZHEE)
(Vi) Remaining life of the Scheme (i) FZE1E|Z AR AR
The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16 ERRETIEN =T —
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme F+Z A+ BERM - FE
will remain valid for a period of 10 vyears RETEIANR T —ZF R
commencing on 21 June 2012 (save that the A +— R+ F8E—
Company, by ordinary resolution in general meeting BB - BB R (AR
or Board may at any time terminate the operation of RREAEBRABRRAN)
the New Share Option Scheme) and in such event, SEFTRI E&ZEBER
no further options will be offered but the provisions T TEE—TIRLER
of the New Share Option Scheme shall in all other MR AR T B 2 IR
respects remain in full force and effect. RABEAMAENAE T
5 o
Details of share options granted by the Company (2) ELGERLBRIEZHE
On 5 September 2007 and 13 April 2010, options to R-ZEZL+FNAARAE T —F
subscribe for 32,400,000 shares and 84,000,000 of the FMA+=H" HHlREERAEAR
Company respectively were granted to the Directors and A5 T B & I AT 3R 32,400,000
certain employees of the Company. As at 31 December % K 84,000,000 g AR &A% (7 2 B8
2012, details of the outstanding options were as follows: feiE - RZFE——F+-_A=+—
B BARITEERECFFIBIT
Number of share options
FEIRHERE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during the during the during the 31 December price
Date of grant 2012 year year year 2012 Option period (HK$)
R=B—=% R-®——%f
—HA—H Rl +—A=+—H 1T{E(E
RHEH EARITE FERHRH  ERITE s EARITE  FERRHERARR (#TT)
13/04/2010 86,026,253 = = — 86,026,253 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
—T-TFWA+=H —E-TFPA+=RAZ
—E-EFNOA+-H
05/09/2007 4,779,236 - - - 4,779,236  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 0.215
—ZTTtFNARAB —ET+FhARRBE
—T—tFHAAMA
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY
(continued)

(b)

Agreement and Supplemental Agreement involving
granting of share options

Pursuant to the Agreement dated 11 July 2007 and the
Supplementary Agreement dated 30 July 2007 relating to the
acquisition of the entire shareholding of GoHi Holdings Limited
(collectively the “Agreements”), the Company granted to Mr.
Wang Wenming an option to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.15 per share in
each of the 12-month periods ending 30 June 2008, 2009 and
2010 respectively (i.e. a maximum of 60,000,000 shares) subject
to the fulfillment of certain conditions as stipulated in the
Agreements.

With the fulfillment of the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2008, an option to subscribe for 20,000,000
shares was granted to Mr. Wang Wenming who exercised the
options and was allotted 20,000,000 shares on 15 January
2009. With the fulfillment of the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2009, another option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares was granted to Mr. Wang Wenming who
exercised the option and was allotted 20,000,000 shares on 26
February 2010. Since the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2010 was not fulfiled, accordingly, pursuant to
the aforesaid Agreements, the remaining option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares of the Company was not granted and has
lapsed as at 31 December 2011.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme and the subscription agreement
as described above and in Notes 32 and 34 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any
of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, save as disclosed in the
financial statements, in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover attributable to its five
largest customers combined accounted for less that 28% of the
Group’s total turnover. The Group had no major supplier due to the
nature of principal activities of the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the vyear, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such code
of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2011 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March
2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganized as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Save for the above, there has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Yiu Sun

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s directions
and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in good
corporate governance and corporate governance practices that
promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. The
Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices for
the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the Corporate
Governance Code for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012 (the "Corporate Governance Code") contained in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
directors have complied with the Company’s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and five non-executive directors (including
four independent non-executive directors), the present board has an
appropriate composition of directors. In ensuring that the Company
has an effective Board, the segregation of the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer has been in place since the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange. Each of all of the non-executive
directors is appointed on a two-year term. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent non-executive
directors are independent. The present board is composed of more
than one-third of independent non-executive directors.

The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Wenming (Chairrman)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Tony | Tong (Independent Non-executive Director)

Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly, interim
and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the Group’s
business to ensure that these risks are within manageable limits. It is
also mandated to approve any substantial investment, acquisition or
disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters that are delegated
to the management include the execution of business strategies and
initiatives approved by the Board and the preparation of quarterly,
interim and annual reports for the Board’s approval.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.

There were five board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings was as follows:
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Attendance
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of
meetings during
term of service

HEE

SRR

Members 4= ERRITERRY
Wang Wenming FHA 5/5
Lee Yiu Sun PRI 5/5
Liu Runtong 281 4/5
Zhang Benzheng sRANIE 5/5
Tony | Tong B 5/5
Li Jianxing T 5/5
Chen Shu Wen BoRAG 3L 5/5
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There were two general meetings during the year. The attendance of

FRAABITMABRRAE - EFNERRKEZ

Directors at the general meeting was as follows: HERNT
Attendance
Number of meetings
attended/ Number of
meetings during term
of service
HEE
SRR
Members 54=] EREITERREY
Wang Wenming F X HA 1/2
Lee Yiu Sun R 2/2
Liu Runtong 2181 0/2
Zhang Benzheng sRARIE 0/2
Tony | Tong B 0/2
Li Jianxing LT 1/2
Chen Shu Wen PR > 0/2
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS ESis
The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with ARATEKZHMEE S - WAZER]ARE
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration #i[E o FIARITHMEE G 2 RHBOKE BB
Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive M IFFRITEDS ©
directors.
As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted RFE#EH - BITHFMEE G HENEHK - +

of six directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Wenming, Mr.
Lee Yiu Sun, Mr. Tony | Tong, Mr. Li Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu
Wen. Four out of the six directors are independent non-executive
directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-
executive director, is the chairman of the committee. The
Remuneration Committee’s role and function includes making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for remuneration of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policy on such remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of

the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive schemes
for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBHRE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:

EEM&(E)
HFNEZESFNRIT-REE  KELFEEBER
m
Attendance
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of

meetings during
term of service

HEE

HEEHRY

Members 54| ERRITERRY
Zhang Benzheng sRARIE 1/
Wang Wenming F B 01
Lee Yiu Sun R 1/
Tony | Tong B 1/1
Li Jianxing T 1/
Chen Shu Wen 11978 0/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remunerations, and making recommendation to the Board for granting
of share options under the New Share Option Scheme of the

Company.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference. As at year end date, Nomination
Committee consisted of five directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr.
Wang Wenming, Mr. Tony | Tong, Mr. Li Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu
Wen. Four out of the five directors are independent non-executive
directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-
executive director, is the chairman of the committee. Thus the present
Committee consist a majority of independent non-executive directors.
The Nomination Committee’s role and function includes, but is not
limited to, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the board
of directors on a regular basis and making recommendations
regarding any proposed changes; identifying and recommending
individuals suitably qualified to become board members; and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBHRE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

EERA(E)
REZEEFARIT—RNLHE  KELHEER
LU
Attendance
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of

meetings during
term of service

HEE

HEEHRY

Members 4= ERRITERRY
Zhang Benzheng sRARIE 1/
Wang Wenming F B 1/1
Tony | Tong B 1/
Li Jianxing T 1/
Chen Shu Wen 171974 1/

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee review
suggested the candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that these
candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the structure,
size, and composition of the board of directors. Only candidates who
have integrity and can provide specific contributions to the Company
thereby enhancing the value of the Company are considered for
nomination to the board of directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work included reviewing

the structure, size, independence and composition of the Board of
Directors and made recommendations thereon.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBHRE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group engaged its
auditors, Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, to provide the
following services and their respective fees charged are set out below:

EEEEN &
HE_ZT——F+-A=+—HILFEE A&
B EE A A TR ST AR AR
RETIRY  BERKS A2 WEEHT I
™

2012 Approximately

—E—CF#lH

HK$

Type of services RF5HEE BT
Audit of the financial statements of the Group ENZARE B YRR 450,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference. The Audit Committee consists of four
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Tony | Tong, Professor
Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Li Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Mr. Tony |
Tong, being an independent non-executive director, is the chairman of
the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function includes
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.

The Audit Committee have reviewed the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 pursuant to the relevant
provisions contained in the Corporate Governance Code And
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules and were of the opinion that such statements had
complied with applicable accounting standards and that adequate
disclosures had been made in respect thereof.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

BREEE(E)
ERZEGRNFANGRITHRGE  HKEZ
HEENT
Attendance
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of

meetings during
term of service

HEE

HEERRe

Members 24 ERRITERRY
Tony | Tong FEE 4/4
Zhang Benzheng sRARIE 4/4
Li Jianxing TET 4/4
Chen Shu Wen BRI S 3/4

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 37 to
38.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be reappointed as the auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires management to
establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation
of the Group’s internal controls has been conducted by management
on an on-going basis to ensure that the system of internal control is
effective and adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBHRE

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee’s work included having held four
meetings to liaise and discuss with the external auditors and listening
to reports from the management on the financial management,
financial statements and audit of the Company. It was found that the
management of the Company and its respective subsidiaries
performed their respective works wholeheartedly. They have
discharged their duties in good faith in line with their corporate
constitutions to make sure that the operations of the business run
compliantly. During the course of managerial control, advice and
recommendation is collected and forwarded for discussion in the
board meetings. There has been no significant issue arising out of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls in the
Group. Accordingly, the Board believed that there would be no
significant matter to be brought to the shareholders’ attention.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, and the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Lee Yiu Sun. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are
followed. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge in 2012.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company Secretary
at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company adheres to high standards with respect to the
disclosure all necessary information to the shareholders in compliance
with GEM Listing Rules. The Company strengthens its communications
with shareholders through various channels including publication of
interim and annual reports, press release and announcements of the
latest development of the Company in its corporate website in a
timely manner.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
8 3L 1% BT R &

Bl #7 &6 5% A4 R F

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FIRST CHINA FINANCIAL NETWORK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First China
Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
39 to 151, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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8 3L 1% BT R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan T. S. Lai
Practising Certificate Number: P04165

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEEBABRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2012 2011
k- Sl 3 =%
Note HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Revenue —E 5 10,350,363 12,686,091
Cost of sales HERA (602,125) (178,266)
Gross profit =7 9,748,238 12,507,825
Other gains Hio e 7 4,400,000 5,606,030
Other income HablUg A 8 1,144,096 3,397,087
Employee benefits expenses EEEFIFX 11 (13,491,384) (16,823,214)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - IS MR EBITE
equipment 17 (4,823,203) (5,208,717)
Amortization of intangible assets EH B 19 (2,451,900) —
Impairment of goodwill EERE 19 (581,950) —
Impairment of intangible assets EVEERE 19 (499,999) —
Impairment of trade receivables JEU R FURE (51,884) —
Impairment of other receivables H {th fe W IBRE (874,185) (4,714,937)
Write-down of inventories FEMUR (4,903,800) =
Finance costs REKAR 9 (964,562) (895,398)
Other operating expenses H A& F S (25,910,282) (28,350,355)
Share of losses of associates JE(RERE N A Es1E 22 (328,356) (245,543)
Loss before income tax BRET1SEL AT E 1R 10 (39,589,171) (34,727,222)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fiis#ise, (FAx) 14 181,522 (4,702,505)
Loss for the year FRETIE (39,407,649) (39,429,727)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w
Currency translation differences: EHkhE R
— Group — £E 662,154 656,093
— Associates — BpE A A 9,515 22,733
Release of translation reserve upon £ S B B 1 ) BF AR BR BE 5 (B 45
disposal of subsidiaries (544,796) (54,684)
Other comprehensive income for the FREMEEWA - B
year, net of tax 126,873 624,142
Total comprehensive income for the FAZERAERE
year (39,280,776) (38,805,585)
BHENRREEEERAR —Z— 5%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEEBABRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2012 2011
k- Sl 3 —ET——%F
Note HK$ HKS$
Bt BT BT
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{GSE PRSI -
Owners of the Company KARER A 15 (39,019,328) (37,855,857)
Non-controlling interests R (388,321) (1,573,870)
(39,407,649) (39,429,727)
Total comprehensive income FEIE 2T\ 4238 -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZEN (38,860,285) (37,121,361)
Non-controlling interests IR A (420,491) (1,684,224)
(39,280,776) (38,805,585)
Loss per share for loss attributable ERAXATIEFAELEEZ
to owners of the Company during SkE5iE
the year
— basic (HK cents) — EARCE) 16 (0.97) (0.96)
— diluted (HK cents) — s (OB() 16 (0.97) (0.96)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bt ¥ 4K 5L ] &R

As at 31 December 2012
RZZ—=—F+=-A=+—H

The Group The Company
AEE AXT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-=-F —T——%F k==t —T——F
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BicE oo o BT BT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 - 422 K R 17 44,033,446 48,637,574 562,546 1,402,618
Investment property BEME 18 46,500,000 42,100,000 - —
Intangible assets BB E 19 6,121,855 84,809 - —
Statutory deposits and other EEEE &
assets HiEE 20 2,030,000 575,000 - =
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIE 21 - = 4,771,260 4,771,260
Investments in associates i NCIPA - 22 15,470 1,676,076 - =
98,700,771 93,073,459 5,333,806 6,173,878
Current assets ENEE
Inventories FE 23 5,458,255 140,514 - =
Held-for-trading investments RIEEBERE 24 - 2,110,359 - -
Current income tax recoverable  RIYR[EI ENEAPTSHL 1,457,827 2,294,840 - =
Trade receivables JEUS BRE TR 25 4,148,882 4,514,554 - =
Prepayments, deposits and other FERZIE « &K
receivables H el za 26 16,403,502 30,849,404 179,724 99,577
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUH B A FZIA 21 - — 68,462,951 69,899,927
Amounts due from associates JE Y Bt 25X B 2 IE 22 - 15,966,214 - =
Bank balances and cash BRI RIRE 27 20,352,602 46,302,258 364,241 8,117,805
47,821,068 102,178,143 69,006,916 78,117,309
Total assets EEEE 146,521,839 195,251,602 74,340,722 84,291,187
Current liabilities mENERE
Trade payables FERTAR X 28 8,137,097 9,087,097 - —
Other payables and accruals H A0 FRIE K
EETFRIE 29 2,978,423 12,088,238 777,500 1,286,387
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A Bl Z0A 21 - = 1,285,991 1,285,991
Amount due to an associate e —KEE =N A
A 22 290 287 - =
Borrowings Bk 30 33,066,172 36,252,047 — —
44,181,982 57,427,669 2,063,491 2,572,378
Net current assets MEEEFE 3,639,086 44,750,474 66,943,425 75,544,931
Total assets less current BEAERRS
liabilities =15 102,339,857 137,823,933 72,277,231 81,718,809
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFSTHEE 31 4,197,812 4,379,334 - =
4,197,812 4,379,334 - =
Net assets BEF 98,142,045 133,444,599 72,277,231 81,718,809
BENRKPEREBERLAR —T——FER
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bt ¥ 4K 5L ] &R

As at 31 December 2012
R=F—ZF+ZA=+—H

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--F -5 —g-CF T
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BizE EL 8T BT oV
Capital and reserves BAERGHE
Share capital AR 32 40,289,642 40,289,642 40,289,642 40,289,642
Share premium BB 32 1,028,819,484 1,028,819,484 1,028,819,484 1,028,819,484
Special reserve BRI 33 4,778,740 4,778,740 - =
Translation reserve VE Hf# 1 9,730,066 9,571,023 - —
Warrants reserve RAEE R 37 223,224 223,224 223,224 223,224
Share-based compensation B mEREE
reserve 34 23,254,749 23,254,749 23,254,749 23,254,749
Accumulated losses 2EEE (1,008,953,861)  (969,934,533) (1,020,309,868) (1,010,868,290)
Equity attributable to owners AR SR AR
of the Company TS 98,142,044 137,002,329 72,277,231 81,718,809
Non-controlling interests R ER 1 (3,557,730) — =
Total equity s 98,142,045 __ 133,444 599 72,277,231 81,718,809

Wang Wenming
FE3CHH
Director

EF
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Bz 2 B, R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

T—HLEE

—#+=ZRA=

Sv0‘eyL'ee vv0‘eyL'86  (198°€S6°800°H) 6vL'vST'ee vee'eee 990°0€L°6  ObL'8LL'v  ¥8Y'618'820°} TY9'682°0F By
H—4=H=+H=—&=W Z10g Jequieoe( |Lg Je se soueleg
222'8L6'e  2TTBLG'E - - - - - - - - ((e)OEFN) (27 B 4 B H (®)9e e10N) seuelpisgns Jo [esodsiq
(922'082'6€) (L61‘02H) (G82‘098°8E) (82€‘610'6€) - - £10°65 L - - - Eg\ E TN Jeak sy} Joj eWooul BAIsuSyeIdWOD (Bl
665 Pry'ect (0EL°2GS'E)  62€°200°LEL (E€S'VE6'696)  6VL'VSE'ET vee'eee €20°1.6°6  ObL'8LL'v  v8Y'618'820°} TY9'6820F BHZH—H—H=—&— 210z Aenuer | pue
NEH—F=H=+E5——F | 10g Jequieoe( |g Je se eoueeg
(VEFRH) (LEFREM) (SCFRH)  (SEFREM) (ce¥ai)
(b€ @10N) (€ @10N) (e€ @10N) (g€ @10N) (€ @10N)
$H $YMH $MH $MH $MH $MH $H $MH $MH $MH
BRHRR s T EAE . B YERESGH W9H LAl HHs  EREE p2]
Aynba s)saJaqul |eloL S9sS0| aniasal antasal aniasal antasal wniwaid Jended ol dnouy ayy
|elol Bujjjouod palenwnooy  uonesuadwod Ssjueliep uonejsuel] |eloadg aieys aleys
-UoN peseq-aJieys
REYB#IETY
Auedwo) ayy Jo sisumo 0} a|qenquny
686G 7ry'eel (082'/68°)  626'200°/61 (68S'Ve6'6%6) 673z 6T  ¥2e€ee - - €20'HG'6  OvL'8LLY ¥8Y'618'820°h CvO'68C0r EHZH—L=H-1H——&TW } 102 Jequis08Q | 1e se eouepeg
- - - 166726 (266'226) = = = = = - - ey EED — suondo e/eys paisen Jo asde —
Bl alWayos Uondo ieyg
A A veeee - - /A4 - - - = = = (LSEMBREELIE (26 ©10N) SjueLEM JO anSs|
= = = = = = = (000'000'89H) — = 000'000'99+  000'000 (Plsexm) YuiEy L ([plgg s1oN) sareyg uolesspisuod Jo enss|
- - - 609'097'7L  — - (609'00r'vl) - - - = i ((PlseR ) ((plge s1on)
ey 207 E ey  seuepisgns Jo uoysinboe Jo 108dse) Ul uojdo jo esde
- (02e'e95)  0/€'e98y 06T — - - - - - - - ()Tl BRZ [ T EIE—45r  (0)og sloN) Areipisans € ul 1salaiul [euolyppe Jo uojisINboy
(cv8'602)  (cv8'602) - - - - = - - - i r (e M) e EHL—2 T ((clge e1oN) Arepisans e Jo [esodsig
(o8a's08'8e) (72 v89't)  (198'1gl'ze) (/98'e98'6) — = = = %re. - o = E AR IEANE Jeak By} 10} BWOOU BASUBYRIOWO [e10)
208'962°7LL 90.'688'C  960'LbE'6AL (299'GL0'CSE) QvLLLlME  — 609°00v'7H  000'000'89+ L2G'968'8  Ov.'8LL% 87618798  ¢v9'68C'8E HZH-H—F——&=H 110z Arenuer | je se soueeg
(M) (eBM)  (Plceel)  (Poerl) (CCTH)  (ce2:ly) (ceT=0)
(e aioN) (g eoN)  (lge eloN)  ((plge sloN) (ec 81oN)  (ze BioN) (ce o1oN)
plécs Ly Ly Ly Ly L Ly Ly Ly rg uy
H $OH H H $H H H H $H SH
RE RaEE g3 BEgRUY YRR YEady  YNDed  YENE YR BRYY i
W
funba SISaJeIU| [elo]. $9S50] IVESe)] EIVESST] VeS| panss| EIVESST] EIVESST] wniweid feycteo BEy dnoug ay
[el0]. Buyjosuoo PaENWNI0Y  UoResuadwod  Sjueuep suopdo eleyg 8q 0} SeleyS  UOpeiSUBl|  [eosdg  areys aleys
-UoN peseq-aJeys

52 IN0=2 {ENA
fueduion 8y} Jo SiBUMO 0} SCRINCUIY

43

—— R

=

HEEEERAE

&
AL

%

BEY



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Bz 2 B, R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

A=+—HILFE

—F+=

LeeLLeeL (898°60€°020°}) 6vL'vSe'ee vee'eee ¥8v'618°820°} 2v9'682'0v HEZA—+=H-+HT—&"H 2102 12quiadaQ Lg 1e se aduejeg
(825°L¥¥'6) (825°L¥¥'6) - - - - WY EENME Jeah 8y} Joj BWOoUl SAISUBYSIALIOD [BI0 )
6088LL°I8 (062‘898°010°) 6vL'vSe'ee vee'eee ¥8v'618°820 L 2v9°'682°01 UHZH—H—F=T—&T 2Log Aenuer | pue
NEH—F=H=+FE——F"H L L0g Jeqwiede |g 1e se 8oueleg
(VEE2H) (LEF2H) (SEEEH) (SEEEH)
(ve @10N) (Lg @10N) (z€ @10N) (z€ @10N)
2w 2w 2w 2w 2w 2w
$HIH $HIH $HIH $HIH $HIH $HIH
BHRH B L2 v ) Y ERINE 230 pa]
RAinba |B10) S9SS0| EYVEREY] aAJosal sjueepy wnjwaud aseys  |ended aleys [ERA Auedwo) ayy
palejnwinooy uonesuadwod
paseq-aJjeys
608'8H.'18 (062'898°010'1) 6¥.'7S2'eT v2e'eee - - ¥87'618'820° L 2¥9'682°0r WHZH—f=H—+H——&H L 10¢ Jequuede g e se aduejeg
- 166226 (266'226) - - - - - B EED — suondo eseys pejsen Jo esde] —
[EREE 2] aweyos uondo aseys
vee'eee - - vge'eee - - - . (LETLF) BRI L3R (L€ ©10N) SluBLEEBM JO 8nss|
- 609'09%' 7+ - - 609'09Y' VL) — - - ((P)ce @10N) saneipisgns
((P)SSTE b ) BB e NG 77 [0 7 8 [ &y Jo uomsinboe Jo 108dsal Ul uopdo Jo esde
- - - - - (000'000°89+) 00000099} 000°000°C (PISETLM) Y WHEI Y Lo ((P)GE ©10N) SereUS UOIEIEPISUOD JO BNsS|
(68€'2.1'9) (688°2.7°9) = = = — — — AR AV Jeak 8y} J0} BWooU] SAISUBYaIdWOoD (810
7,6'296'.8 (205'622°610")) 9vL'2/L've - 609°09%'17 - 000'000'89+ 787'618'298 2v9'682'88 HHZIH-—H—H——&=K 110z Aenuer | e se soueleg
(VEERH) (LEE) (P)seFEH) ((P)SeF2EH) (cEEMH) (CEERFH)
(v€ @10N) (2€ @10N) ((P)ge @10N)  ((PISE ®10N) (€ ®ION) (e @10N)
U L U UG LU U UG LU
SHH SHH $HH SHH SHH $HH SHH SHH
gEtE BEBBROW YEEHNE BRI GIBHLLSE S Y il
Anba S9SSO| onIesal IV aniesal panss| winiwaid [lendeo [ENA4 Auedwo) ey
[ej0] pajeNWNo0y  UOlEesusdwod  Sjuelepn suoido aieys  eq 0} seseys  eseys aleys

paseq-eseys

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

44



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

N =
ZEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_Z——F+-A=1T—HIEFE

2012 2011
¥ —T—F
Note HK$ HK$
Bzt B BT
Cash flows from operating activities BETHFARHERE
Loss before income tax BRETSHiRIEE (39,589,171)  (34,727,222)
Adjustments for: NP B IEAR
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% - ERRETE 4,823,203 5,208,717
— Share of losses of associates — BB AR R 328,356 245,543
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEMHE - ERREHEL
plant and equipment BE/ () 20,353 (258,765)
— Net fair value (gains)/losses on securities trading —BHEBEZATEME),
R (19,272) 1,261,117
— Net fair value gains on investment property —REYEZ A TENZFEE (4,400,000) (344,500
— Amortization of intangible assets — BT & EE N 2,451,900 —
— Impairment of goodwil —EERE 581,950 —
— Impairment of intangible assets —EBFEERE 499,999 -
— Impairment of trade receivables — W ERFRE 51,884 =
— Impairment of other receivables — H A EM IR R(E 874,185 4,714,937
— Write-down of inventories —TFERMR 4,903,800 =
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries —HENBARZESE, (M) 4,354,581 (3,971,794)
— Loss on acquisition of additional interest — U BB — B B R RS ME
in a subsidiary ZEE 58,346 =
— Interest income — | BIRA (591,834) (937,225)
Operating cash flows before changes in working SELSEPRZEERSRE
capital (25,651,720)  (28,809,192)
— Statutory deposits and other assets —FEEREREMEE (1,455,000) —
— Inventories —FE (10,215,543) (99,225)
— Held-for-trading investments —FEEBERA 2,129,631 (153,918)
— Trade receivables — FEMBRTR 297,178 1,670,933
— Prepayments, deposits and other receivables —TENRE - ke REMEK
A 15,745,462 19,773,667
— Amounts due from associates — U2 A B FOA 15,966,214 =
— Segregated trust bank balances — B ERRP AR 861,584 20,279,268
— Trade payables —ERTER (1,011,490)  (20,306,944)
— Other payables and accruals — H A E R FRIB R EE TR (11,023,860)  (1,959,845)
Cash used in operations HEEAZRE (14,357,544)  (9,605,256)
Income tax refunded/(paid) BRE/(BEMETEH 855,001 (323,171)
Interest received B UF S 591,834 937,225
Net cash used in operating activities EEEEERZAETE (12,910,709)  (8,991,202)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETERBHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BRRZE (128,518)  (41,237,868)
Purchase of investment property BEREME —  (41,755,500)
Purchases of intangible assets BERFEE (500,000) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E¥E « #2S KR EFS 08 - 440,086
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary WiE—Rmk B A REIMER - )
Advances to associates N i — (13,464,253
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEEH B AR - HBRFTEERS (8,637,348) =
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZEE - (1,229,830)
Repayment from an associate Bt N A EE 1A - 287
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed HERBAR  MRHERS (375,364) 4,317,555
Net cash used in investing activities BEEEERZREFE (9,641,230) ~ (92,929,524)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
8 =
SEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——Ft+-A=+—HIFE
2012 2011
—g-= B
Note HK$ HK$
BizE biow BIT
Cash flows from financing activities AEEHHMERERE
Proceeds from issue of warrants, net of related BITRIREBPTSEUA -
transaction costs B R A - 203,224
Repayments of bank borrowings RITIERZBRK (3,185,875) (2,877,953
Drawdown of bank borrowings 5 2 R1TE — 39,130,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing REEEN(BIA), EEZ
activities R&i8E (3,185,875) 36,475,271
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re&RBRE&SEERRLFE (25,737,814)  (65,445,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FYHRe RRE&FEEE 39,650,030 104,961,222
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEEE L RE 649,742 134,263
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZBSRBSEEER 27 14,561,958 39,650,030

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of stock information and research
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), provision
of securities and futures trading services, corporate finance
services and wealth management services in Hong Kong and
trading and principal investments.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office is
situated at Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated
at 16th Floor, CMA Building, No.64-66 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The Company has selected
Hong Kong dollar as its presentation currency as management
considered it is more beneficial to the users of the consolidated
financial statements. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved and authorized for issue by the board of
directors on 22 March 2013.

BENEAKREEARLT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2.

48

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M5 W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

In prior year, the Group early adopted the
Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Taxes:
Recovery of Underlying Assets” in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax on investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
and are presumed to be recovered through sale.

The adoption of the new and revised of HKFRS has
no material effect in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior
years.

2. FEEFBHRMEGE)

21 WRER(H)
BH BARBEATZ L

@)

T BN 2 #3T FASIERT
EAY
EEUHRE RESER
B RMBE
(E8TH)  RIEWE
BEE
A

BRUBHRE HE - &
ERIE7H B
(ERTAR) BE

RBEFE - AEEIERK
MEEGTEAF 12528
FIARDELENIR | B E
BE| BERPRRERE
SETERIF 405 REME
RAAFERAFEARE
BERHER TREZEREY
EMERIRIETRIR ©

RN MIERT BB 55
BEENBAKEREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IFESHBREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BB R R ERTEZEE) (E)
(continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) R ERANEGRTER R 2 R

ARER B IR T A A TR
FPSESCRINRY 3L ERC S

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

50

not yet effective:

R BBMBHRELE] :

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government Loans? BRUBREER REER
EALACCHEN)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting BRUBRERED BB — 28
Financial Assets and ETR(ETA)  AEHSH
Financial Liabilities? BEEH
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date BANMBREREL BERNBRE
(Amendments) of HKFRS 9 and FORRBEES  EAFR
Transition Disclosures? BREEAZE7  ZanlE
RUEETA) MAHRB
B E
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BBMBRELER S@MIA
F0%
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BERUBRERE HREHMBRR?
Statements? £10%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? BEUMBRERE BekH
F115%
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests BEUBRERED RERNEME
in Other Entities? F12% B R
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? ERUMBRERA QTEHE
F13%

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11  Consolidated Financial BANBREEN FoUBR
and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint E10% - BB * - HER%
(Amendments) Arrangements and IR S 2R BREERE

Disclosure of Interests ENHREED thE

in Other Entities: Bs AR @ BRI

Transition Guidance? F12% 5
EHES

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

2.1

)

(continued)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)

(Amendment)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(FRIC) — Int 20

Annual Improvements
Project

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015.

Investment Entities®

Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive
Income!

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial
Statements?

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of
a Surface Mine?

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle?

2. FEEFBHRMEGE)

2.1

EREE(E)

EF B R RILFREZEE) (E)

©®)

AR IR B FTER R a2 FE
(4%&)

BEYBHREER REER
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IR 2R
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SR

75 (ZF—
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A esER ZFIREfZ

F1R(BIIA)  BERAZ
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B asER EERAP
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BB LR BB BR?
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BB EEER NN

5085 RERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010
to include the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

° All recognized financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortized cost at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognized in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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2.

54

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are
described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
deal with consolidated financial statements. HK (SIC)
— Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS
10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains
three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. HK (SIC) — Int 13
Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of
joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In
addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are
required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using
the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify
certain transitional guidance on the application of
these five HKFRS for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted provided all
of these standards are applied early at the same
time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will
be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1
January 2013. The application of these five
standards may have significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the directors have not yet performed a
detailed analysis of the impact of the application of
these standards and hence have not yet quantified
the extent of the impact.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

2.

FEEHBORBIE ()

2.1

EREE(E)
Ei B R RILFREZEE) (E)

©®)

14 R ERAN TR R iR FE
(#&)

BHEEMHEKRE - XRZHE
AN INE I A DL
CHEEEC-)
—T——F+H BEYE
WEERIE 105 - BBYE
WEERIE 11 SRR BB
WELBIFE 1258 2 BET AR
- BIBA BRI R NERA Lt
ABEBHBHREENZE
FiBEES| o

it AIRERE R A BB E
ERIZIERTAR=_T—=F
—A—BRZERBZFE
HIR AR - AR ERA - I
AR IE R IR F LR -

EEHEARN_ZE—=F—A
—HRBZEEREERE
BiRAMBHRAERA LR
BRI - IRAZAALER K
SHRAMBREME2RE
BELEATE R &
ERARFADTERAZFE
AR Ut Y BB
EWRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RHIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The standard defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it
applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosures requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures
based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures will be extended
by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within
its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1
January 2013 and that the application of the new
standard may affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and result in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The adoption of the above standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards in future
periods is not expected to result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

In addition, HKICPA also published a number of
amendments to the existing standards under its
annual improvement projects. These amendments
are not expected to have a significant financial
impact on the results and financial position of the
Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognized in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IFESHBREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MBEATE)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 && (&)
(a)  Business combinations @ EEEY

The Group applies the acquisition method to REBERA G KE
account for business combinations. The FEEREBEH 2N
consideration transferred for the acquisition of BRT50% o shUR s I B
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets RAFTERERRETAR
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former SEEEEE - AIH
owners of the acquiree and the equity WEE A AFTEE
interests issued by the Group. The ZBERBEITIRARE
consideration transferred includes the fair value w2 NFE - FTEEE
of any asset or liability resulting from a REBFEEXIARE
contingent consideration arrangement. THEEZERNEE

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognized in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

©)

©

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary or
associate in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of
the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognized
in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal and
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognizes the amount adjacent to
“share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognized in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’'s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who

2.5

is responsible for allocating
performance of the operating segments,

resources and assessing
has been

identified as the steering committee that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

@

©®)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

@

@

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

° income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates for the year; and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly
controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity
holders of the company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2. FEEFBHRMEGE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 25 HMEBRE(E)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal @ HEGFIFEFRE DL E
(continued) (#&)
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result WEp D HEW TS BEASE
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that BXREHMBAR(RIES
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share HNZETS ) O PEBIRE - LI
of accumulated exchange differences are reattributed Frih & REHiE X Z 8T E#T
to non-controlling interests and are not recognized R IEE R ER - B AR
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that BaR R o AT A E M EL
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in o HE(BIAEEREZ A
associates or jointly controlled entities that do not RIS EIEIE RS 2 a1
result in the Group losing significant influence or -y NI S TN SE IS
joint control) the proportionate share of the RERTE ) LR
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to WED HE)ME « LA
profit or loss. it REHE N ZR T ER
DEEEZNA o
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 Wi - HIEBRERE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

W - Hees N AR IR SE AR AR
Bk - EENABRERRBEW
BAERIRR ZFX - RRKAER
HARAER 2 AREBEN AR
AREE BZIAR 2 AR R Seat
B - TRIABEREEXERR
BYBERERBRAME) - KE
B 2 BREERRZ LR - 8
HAb S RORENE £ 2 M TR HAR]
iR e EEBARRHRR

ME - WBERRBEZITETIAER
7 IREEET AR AER - A
ROBEZEHFIENMERE - FTAFHN
™

Land Over the term of leases tit RHEAFE

Building 25 years BF 25%F

Leasehold improvements Over the term of leases HEMFERE AT H

Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years WAEZERRM 3ESF

Computer equipment 3 years B 3F

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years RE 3&E104F
BHERREEEERAR —Z— 5%
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2.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property. Investment
property comprises freehold land, land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases.
Land held under operating leases and buildings is
classified and accounted for as investment property when
the rest of the definition of investment property is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs are incurred for the purpose of acquiring
or constructing a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of
its cost. Borrowing costs are capitalized while acquisition
or construction is actively underway and cease once the
asset is substantially complete, or suspended if the
development of the asset is suspended.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
fair value. Fair value is based on valuations carried out by
professional valuers. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property, or
for which the market has become less active continues to
be measured at fair value. Where fair value of investment
property under construction is not reliably determinable,
such investment property under construction is measured
at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably
determinable or construction is completed (whichever is
earlier).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on
a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected
in respect of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognized as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of leasehold land, if any, classified as investment
property; others, including contingent rent payments, are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount
of the property only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values of investment property are
recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal.

When an investment property undergoes a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale, the property is transferred to completed properties
held for sale at its fair value at the date of change in use.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, except that
the land portion is reclassified as leasehold land and land
use rights if it is operating lease in nature, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this property at the
date of transfer is recognized in equity as revaluation of
property, plant and equipment. However, if the fair value
gives rise to a reversal of a previous impairment, this
write-back is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. This revaluation reserve shall
remain and be transferred to revenue reserve upon
disposal of this property.

Intangible assets

@  Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group
of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(b)  Trading rights
The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange
and on The Hong Kong Future Exchange Limited.
The trading rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

(c)  Software
The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life of 2 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@)

©®)

(©

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held-for-trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”,
“prepayments, deposits and other receivables”,
“amounts due from associates” and “bank balances
and cash” in the statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date (the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset). Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognized in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as “gains and losses
from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods is arrived
at purchase cost. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—RIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

FEEHBURBIE ()

219 BNFARIEREFRISH (&)

Deferred income tax B8
Inside basis differences AFEE L Z 2

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
within the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2011: Nil).

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan. The
Group is required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

©®)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognized over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognizing the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

©)

@

Share-based compensation (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits faling due more than 12 months after
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_T—=

FH—A=+—RBIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

222

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity, and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below:

Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognized on a trade date basis.

(@

Fees and service income are recognized when the
relevant transactions have been arranged or the
relevant services have been rendered.

Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealized fair value gains or losses are recorded on
change in fair value on the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognized
using the original effective interest rate.

(e) Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

(f) Rental is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
terms of lease agreements.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@  the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EETBUREE(2)
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following (b) Ei)\:tﬁ'jﬁ%f HE T B R AT {5
conditions applies: 15353 B
)  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBHEASE IJ? A
same group; —S£EMKER
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of iy ZEBRIEBEHD
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or BENRREEDRE
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); (ZZERRS—ER
WERAF - B A R
KREKEAR)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of iy ZEBHEASENHAE
the same third party; FA—F=Ha%&h
g
(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy ZEREARE=-HHE
and the other entity is an associate of the MEELE  MH—
third entity; ERRAZFE=TER
)N
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan V) ZEBAANSEHE
for the benefit of employees of either the SEEBEBHER
Group or an entity related to the Group; AR B | 28 58 3 A B
BEfErE
(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by Vi) ZEBX()HEAA
a person identified in (a); and o 4% i) sk 2k /] 12 )
54
(vil a person identified in (a)i) has significant (vii) P @)() PRk BIA ¥ 5%
influence over the entity or is a member of the %ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ@@ﬂ %
key management personnel of the entity (or of BZEB(HZEEY
a parent of the entity). SN _J JEBEE A
= .

Close members of the family of a person are those

224 HEEANL(E)

\
’

AANLTHARRER B BE

family members who may be expected to influence, HERRFREHRETEZ
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings AANTHZEZBATRE
with the entity. HXERKE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1

(a) Market risk

0

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchase by operating units in
currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs are denominated
in the functional currencies of the operating
units. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash flow
generated from business transactions locally.
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

@

(i)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group was
exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as held-
for-trading investments (Note 24) as at 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s listed
investments were listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and were valued at quoted market
prices.
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3.

84

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)
(i) Price risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to every 5% increase/decrease in the fair
values of the equity investments with all other
variables held constant and before any impact
on tax, based on their carrying amount as at
31 December 2011.

MREAREEE)
3.1 HHBEKBERE)
(a) HHEEEE)

(i)

B1&/ES (&)
TRBREABAREN
—T——F+ZRA=

+—BZEEE 5
FERREATES
2 8 5% 2 B (i
BHMERERTE

KR ET R AR 7 75 52
2) -
Increase/
(decrease)
in carrying
amount Increase/
of equity (decrease) Increase/
income in loss (decrease)
investments before tax in equity
BAEKANEE B#imn
ARTED{EYEN0,~ R5iEYNn~ #ERiEN
(i) (i) (i)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT Y5 TT BTT
2011 =%
Equity securities listed in the PRC FAFRER £
2 RSB 5
5% increase in equity price IR (E&IEIN5% 105,518  (105,518) 105,518
5% decrease in equity price IR BB 5% (105,518) 105,518  (105,518)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

@

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank deposits and
borrowings which carry floating interest rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the
Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed rate borrowings. The
Group currently does not use any derivative
instruments to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, if interest
rates on the bank deposits and borrowings
had been decreased by 50 basis points with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
pre-tax loss for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012 would decrease by
approximately HK$198,000 and HK$155,000
respectively.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit risk
of the counterparty is managed at an early stage
and sufficient provision is made for possible defaults.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and
other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
certain concentrations of credit risk as approximately
49% (2011: 56%) and 94% (2011: 96%) of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor and the five largest
trade debtors respectively. Further quantitative data
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had borrowings
with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$33,066,000 (2011: HK$36,252,000) (Note 30).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—Z——Ft+t-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq) 3. RMBRERERE(E
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HHBEKBERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REIEREEE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBEEREENREHE
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual FrRIE & KU ARITIRAT 502 B
undiscounted payments, was as follows: BIEAT ¢
On demand Between Between Total Total
or within 1 and 2 and Over undiscounted  carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BER KR
PiME 126 2F54E SENE  REREEE EREE
HK$S HK$ HK$S HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2012 —g—-%
Trade payables MR 8,137,007 - - - 8,137,007 8,137,097
Other payables and accruals Hith I FRIB I BT FUR 2,978,423 - - - 2,978,423 2,978,423
Amount due to an associate ER—REE R RHE 290 - - - 290 290
Borrowings (Note) B (M) 37,389,048 - - — 37,380,948 33,066,172
2011 —B——f
Trade payables FETBRFR 9,087,097 — — — 9,087,097 9,087,097
Other payables and accruals B A fE 0B R fERT TR 12,088,238 = = = 12,088,238 12,088,238
Amount due to an associate ANRER: = YNSEE] 287 - - - 287 287
Borrowings (Note) fER(HsE) 41,445,087 = = = 41,445,087 36,252,047
Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are Mz : BEREREBERZRT
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in BEE LM BHA DA
the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2012, the [RER DR F 2R
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of the bank HERN -HR=T—=—F+=
loans amounted to HK$37,389,948 (2011: HK$41,445,087). A=+—8 ' RITEFKTT
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the WAL A /437,389,948
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks BLx (=% — —F
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate 41,445,08747T) © 5 RANE
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will Bz ogking - EEHEE
be repaid over a period of 10 (2011: 11) years in SRITRA AT RELT (5 H Z K AD
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in BERZHIEE EEMH
the loan agreements. 5 ZERTEEBSREE

PN RIE T e
RI0F(ZF——F : 114)
HRAEE -

BENEREEERERAT —2——F5H 87
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3.

88

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

3.2

Capital risk management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the
“SFC”) and are required to comply with certain minimum
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debt (including current and non-current liabilities but
excluding current or deferred income tax liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (including share capital
and premium, reserves, accumulated losses and non-
controlling interests as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

3.2

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2011, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio within 50%. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios as at
31 December 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

MEEMER ()

EeREER(E)

AEEE-_T——FHEZFT-T
—— KR - BREABEBHEKL
AR RIERFES0% A - W=
FHFE=F—FTZA=T

—BZEHHEHERAL R0

T :
2012 2011
—g—=fF —E——1fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total debt BIETS 44,181,982 57,427,669
Less: Bank balances and cash, W RITEBRRES
including bank trust accounts BIERITEFERP
(Note 27) (Mg=E27) (20,352,602) (46,302,258)
Net debt B8 23,829,380 11,125,411
Total equity R ARRE 98,142,045 133,444,599
Adjusted capital KRR A 98,142,045 133,444,599
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BRI HREAR AN L 2R 24% 8%
The increase in the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio during MN-E——F  (EIFE K AR

2012 resulted primarily from decrease in bank balances
and cash during the year ended 31 December 2012.

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,

derived from prices) (level 2).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 QAFEZMERE)
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . BENEBELIERE A B
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ZMBEE 2 ABE(E
(level 3). FERZBASE)(FE=
) o
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREVWRZZE—F A=+
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December —B  RATEFECAEEEE
2011, REfE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— T8 E=0 aact
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
P IT T P T P IT
2011 =%
Held-for-trading investments  #H{EE H1% & 2,110,359 — — 2,110,359

90

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in
level 1 comprise primarily equity investments listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and classified as held-for-
trading investments.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERZ)
3.4 Financial instruments by category 34 £RITHAME
The Group AEE
2012 —ET——F

Loans and
receivables
ERRERRIA
HK$
&I

Financial assets as per consolidated statement of #R& AN BR 2 & REEE

financial position

Statutory deposits and other assets EEERe REMEE 2,030,000
Trade receivables FEUWAR X 4,148,882
Deposits and other receivables e & H bR IE 16,109,021
Bank balances and cash IRITEEHR IS 20,352,602
42,640,505
Financial
liabilities at
amortized cost
RSB
STEZSREE
HK$
&I

Financial liabilities as per consolidated statement #F& MRz S FEGE

of financial position

Trade payables JESHBRFR 8,137,097
Other payables and accruals E b T FRIE K FE ST IR 2,978,423
Amount due to an associate FERT— KB & R R RIE 290
Borrowings &3k 33,066,172
44,181,982

EENEREEEERAT —T——F5H ok



92

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Financial instruments by category (continued)

The Group
2011

3.

MEEMER ()
34 SMIASE(E)

ZN S

—T——4F

Financial
assets at fair

value through  Loans and
profit or loss  receivables Total
BEATE
FFABEZEZ Rk
SRIEE FEMFRIA st
HK$ HKS HK$
o BIT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated 45& BAFSAR N TR
statement of financial position ZRRVEE
Statutory deposits and other assets JATIRE REMEE — 575,000 575,000
Held-for-trading investments BRIEEEKREA 2,110,359 — 2,110,359
Trade receivables e BR X — 4,514,554 4,514,554
Deposits and other receivables g M E b fE W IR — 30,557,815 30,557,815
Amounts due from associates JRE i Bt 8 X B IR — 15,966,214 15,966,214
Bank balances and cash RITESR MRS — 46,302,258 46,302,258
2,110,359 97,915,841 100,026,200
Financial
liabilities at
amortized cost
biv: 3 (DN
ECERAE
HK$
BIT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated statement #REBBANBRZ CRIBE
of financial position
Trade payables FE{SBR TR 9,087,097
Other payables and accruals Eo e3R8 K FE AT ERIE 11,465,994
Amount due to an associate FERT—KEsE = A RIFIE 287
Borrowings &K 36,252,047
56,805,425
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@  Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units (“CGU”) have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates.

(b)  Estimated impairment of intangible assets other than

gooawill

The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible assets
other than goodwill have suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. If
the recoverable amount of an intangible asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the intangible asset is reduced to its receivable amount.
The assessment of the recoverable amount requires the
use of estimates and assumptions.

(c)  Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group’s management determines the impairment of
trade and other receivables on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its customers
and current market conditions. Management reassesses
the impairment of trade and other receivables at the end
of the reporting period.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

(@)

(e

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group has significant property, plant and equipment.
The Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to ascertain the
amount of depreciation charges for each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase of
these assets after considering business developments and
the Group’s strategies. The Group performs annual
reviews to assess the appropriateness of the estimated
useful lives. Such review takes into account any
unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results, negative
industry and economic trends. The Group extends or
shortens the useful lives and/or makes impairment
provisions according to the results of the review.

Estimated fair value of investment property

The investment property of the Group was stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2.7. The fair value of the investment property is
determined by an independent qualified professional
valuer. The valuation was based on certain assumptions,
which is subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results.

In making the judgment, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalization rates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions
entered into by the Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGMENTS (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued) BEXEEHEET RIRER ()
(H  Income taxes 0 B

EXEHEET RAER(E)

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant judgment is
required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination are made.

AEBRMNE T EBNINEDERE
B ZFiiSH - BEMGREERS
SEHERHE - AEFBKBIET
BETHURESRKREAZR S M
AETE - AEERRET LI
SNEBBHIR Z (bt BEEMERTE
HMBEEMELZBE - WxE
EEZREBBEREENLR L
ERTRE - BREZEMETEFD
BRORTE A Z FEH SR ET A

B

5. REVENUE B
2012 2011
—T——-F —=T——%F
HK$ HK$
&I PETT
Income from provision of a trading RERZTFalkA
platform 156,714 161,748
Commission income from securities B REKEASIA
and futures brokerage 3,481,371 6,123,444
Interest income from clients BEFPAT{SF 2 WA 537,944 827,951
Net fair value gains/(losses) on BHER G2 AFEME
securities trading (B518) %% 19,272 (1,261,117)
Income from provision of wealth R E BRI 2 WA
management services 124,796 322,766
Rental income from investment property &% 2 S U 1,164,373 985,600
Income from provision of stock REARE A R ARTE 2 WA
information and research services 4,865,893 5,525,699
10,350,363 12,686,091
BHERREEEERAR —Z— 5%
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

EES

6.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the Group has seven
reportable segments: (1) provision of a trading platform; (2)
provision of brokerage and securities margin financing services;
(8) provision of corporate finance services; (4) trading and
principal investments; (5) provision of wealth management
services; (6) property investments; and (7) provision of stock
information and research services.

The segment information of the reportable segments for the
year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Brokerage and

SEER

ETREERRECDHEBIBARB 2T
EX(HTER) - ATEFENARE
ZARERE - LFRKBARIEER -

BREZEREETLENE
HWITESERAANEEA LA RENE

MRERZFE : QRELLE KREFESFR
EEBERY  (3) RHUERBERS ;
WEEMBZERE  O)REMEEER
% OMFRRE  R(IRHREEA R

BE-T —F+t-A=1+HLFE
ZARES L HBERAT -

securities Stock

Provision of margin Corporate Trading and Wealth information

a trading financing finance principal management Property and research
platform services services investments services investments services Total

R BERESR EER REEAR
RHFE RESHMEARE SRMERE BERE METERE MERE TR a5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&L BT BT &L BT BT &L BT
Segment revenue from external customers SHREEHERA 156,714 4,019,315 - 19,272 124,796 1,164,373 4,865,893 10,350,363
Segment results PREE 11,715 (4,325,105) (10,350) (533,510) (2,687) 5553214  (19,451,483) (18,758,206)
Net unallocated expenses AOERZFE (19,592,479)
Finance costs REMA (964,562)
Interest income FISHA 54,432
Share of losses of associates B EARER (328,356) (328,356)
Loss before income tax Lz ! (39,589,171)
Income tax credit FiiaBike 181,522
Loss for the year FREE (39,407,649)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HEEARE)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the BHE_ZE——F+-_A=T—RHILFE
year ended 31 December 2011 is as follows: ZAIRED I 2 DFEERIAT ¢
Brokerage and Stock
Provision of a securities margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
trading financing finance principal  management Property and research
platform services services  investments services  investments services Total
Rt % BEER BRER L
X5¥a REL CERARE BERE WEEERS MERE HERS it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT oy BT BT iy BT BT i
Segment revenue from external customers SHREEHERA 161,748 6,951,395 - (1,261,117) 322,766 985,600 5,525,699 12,686,091
Segment results DREE 9,998 (3,450,675) (300) (2,533,602 (177,932 1,325,435 (18,548,353)  (23,375,429)
Net unallocated expenses APERXFE (10,320,126)
Finance costs BERAK (895,398)
Interest income FSMA 109,274
Share of losses of associates REEEARESE (245,543) (245,543)
Loss before income tax BRI T ARSI (34,727,222)
Income tax expense FiEHiRA% (4,702,508)
Loss for the year FREE (39,429,727)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BE_T——HF+_A=+—HItFE
2012 is as follows: ZEAM A RRERIAT
Brokerage and
securities Stock
Provision of margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
a trading financing finance principal management Property and research
platform services services  investments services  investments services  Unallocated Total
i3 SERES BER BRREAR
RHTE RESKMARE LRMERE BERE MEEERE MERA IR RHE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT ET ET ET ET ET ET BT
Depreciation and amortization mEREHE - 63,417 - 28,195 - - 1,992,765 5,100,726 7,275,103
Impairment of goodwil BRAE - - - - - - - 581,950 581,950
Impairment of intangible assets B EENE - 499,999 - - - - - - 499,999
Impairment of trade receivables  FEURERFUR(E - - - - 51,884 - - - 51,884
Impairment of other receivables Bt EUFERE - - - - - - - 874,185 874,185
Write-down of inventories FEHE - - - - - - 4,903,800 - 4,903,800
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——F+-A=t—HItFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. NEAEARE
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_E——F+_HA=1T—HILFE
2011 is as follows: ZEMAEERAT ¢
Brokerage and Stock
Provision of a  securities margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
trading financing finance principal  management Property  and research
platform services services investments services investments services Unallocated Total
b B RES BEER BRERR
X5¥e RECRMERE CEREARG BERE HMEEERS MERE IR AR 5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
oy o o o o o o o o
Depreciation and amortization FEREH = 369,540 = 244,839 5,621 - 2,177,535 2,421,282 5,208,717
Impairment of other receivables  E At EUFIERE - - - - - - - 4,714,937 4,714,937
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and DHEEETEBREME - BB REE
equipment, investment property, intangible assets, statutory KEME  BEBREE /zm;@&ﬁm
deposits and other assets, investments in associates, held-for- BE RBERRZIEE  FEEEK
trading investments, trade and other receivables, amounts due & - EUARSR R B IR - U
from associates and bank balances and cash. Segment liabilities UNETE - SIEI &fi TSR NIRE - ofE
comprise operating liabilities. AEPRELERE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and RZB——F+_HA=1+—HZHEE
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows: ERBENEEZEILFECERRAL
A
Brokerage and
securities Stock
Provision of margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
a trading financing finance principal management Property and research
platform services services  investments services  investments services  Unallocated Total
Rt CORESRE BER REANR
RXHER SRARE EEMERE BERE MEEERS YERE IR RHE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Segment assets PREE 94,974 22,283,436 207,733 1,533,728 500,712 46,854,332 25455471 49575983 146,506,369
Investments in associates REEARZIRE - - - - - - 15,470 - 15,470
94,974 22,283,436 207,733 1,533,728 500,712 46,854,332 25,470,941 49,575,983 146,521,839
Segment liabilities AEARE 1,173 7,610,832 5,000 52,664 25,578 17,497,000 137,809 23,049,738 48,379,794
Capital expenditure AXRRX
Additions of property, plant and ~ REME « #ER
equipment RfE - 87,196 - - - - 30,089 178,121 295,406
Additions of intangible asset NEEEE - 500,000 - - - - - 9,189,162 9,689,162
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—Z——Ft+t-A=1+—HIFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. wEERE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and

capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

R-E——Ft+-_A=+—HZHEE&
ERBERBEZAILFEZEARARAX

A
Brokerage and Stock
Provision of a  securities margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
trading financing finance principal  management Property  and research
platform services services investments services investments services Unallocated Total
by B RES BER BEEAR
5T RESHARE OGEXRERS BERE HEEERS NERE RS ARE it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Segment assets PEEE 83,018 30,633,896 113,083 3,739,051 568,069 42,261,718 62,434,243 53,742,448 193,675,526
Investments in associates REERAZIRE - - - 647,842 - - 1,028,234 - 1,676,076
83,018 30,633,896 113,083 4,386,893 568,069 42,261,718 63,462,477 53,742,448 195,251,602
Segment liabilities AR 933 5,973,676 - 67,671 99,633 18,854,831 9,785,979 27,024,280 61,807,003
Capital expenditure BERRX
Additions of property, plant and ~ REWE « BER
equipment B = 27,390 - 18,620 - - 115,684 41,076,174 41,237,868
Additions of investment property  RERENE - - - - - 41,755,500 - = 41,755,500
. . v BE A SR e
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC. AEEFENEBRFBILE -
2012 2011
—E——f —T——%F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Revenue =% <0
Hong Kong B 5,465,198 8,351,769
The PRC H 4,885,165 4,334,322
10,350,363 12,686,091

BENEAKREEARLT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the
customer is located.

SEEH(E)

EEBREPAEBRRE D -

2012 2011
—E——F —=——fF
HK$ HKS$
HIT S TT
Total assets EEHEE
Hong Kong B8 111,679,230 128,509,051
The PRC = 34,827,139 65,066,475
146,506,369 193,575,526
Investments in associates REEE R F 2 I8E 15,470 1,676,076
146,521,839 195,251,602
Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are BEREREENEES -
located.
2012 2011
—E—=F —T—%
HK$ HKS$
T BIT
Capital expenditure BAXRXZ
Hong Kong B8 594,726 82,859,064
The PRC H 9,389,842 134,304
9,984,568 82,993,368

Capital expenditure is allocated on where the assets are located.

Information about major customers
Details of the customers accounting for 10% or more of total
revenue are as follows:

BEARXREEMELED

FERERZEAH

AU A10%A E 2 B FEIBIT ¢

2012 2011
—FT—_F —E——fF

HK$ HK$

T BT

Customer A BEA 1,164,373 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

7. OTHER GAINS 7.  Hibugs
2012 2011
—B—_F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT Vow
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - #e2 K& 2 Was
equipment - 258,765
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary d & — R B A R 2 Wk
(Note 36(b)) (W15E36(0) - 3,971,794
Gain arising on change in fair value of R EYENFEEBFTESE Y
an investment property (Note 18) Weas (fF7E18) 4,400,000 344,500
Gain on disposal of software to an [ — B A B S B 2 e
associate - 1,030,971
4,400,000 5,606,030
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftsle A
2012 2011
—g—--fF —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT 7SI
Advertising service income EERIBBA - 1,025,034
CCASS fee income RREERGERWA 232,367 858,134
Handling fee income FEBIA 76,552 188,660
Interest income on bank deposits AT A S WA 53,890 109,272
Other interest income H At FI A 542 2
Sundry income FETEWA 780,745 1,215,985
1,144,096 3,397,087
BHERREEEERAR —Z— 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EES

O

10.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 9. MIEME
2012 2011
—B—_F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Interest expenses on: FERAZ
Bank borrowings wholly repayable AR —FRNBEER 2 IRITIER
within one year - 785
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable  HZBR e BRI 45 R A 5T
within one year from the end of the —FATHREEEBEETEEN
reporting period but contain a B8 2 R IRITIER
repayment on demand clause 964,562 894,613
964,562 895,398
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFTG#HAIESTE
2012 2011
—B—_F =%
HK$ HKS
&I 7SI
Loss before income tax has been BRETSBIRIEIBE R (GTA)
arrived at after charging/(crediting): THI%IE :
Auditors’ remuneration = ERRT N & 450,000 500,000
Loss on acquisition of additional interest UgEE—FEIHI B A 7l 2 5BIMER 2
in a subsidiary (included in other EE(BEst A MEERAT)
operating expenses)
— Loss on remeasurement — EXEEAAFA ZREZ
of previously held equity interest E518 58,346 —
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries I EMTE A 72 &8 (M EE36(a))
(note 36 (a)) (included in other (Bt AHAMLERT)
operating expenses) 4,354,581 —
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - s NEE s
plant and equipment (included in EE (Bt AR MEERT)
other operating expenses) 20,353 —
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEVMZE 2 EEHRNER
rented premises 3,472,336 4,712,371
Rental income net of outgoings in HEWA - EHREEYMFEER
respect of investment property (706,596) (5697,700)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

11.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 11. ESEFBEX
2012 2011
—B—_F —E——F
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
Wages and salaries TERFS 13,270,073 16,608,354
Pension costs — defined contribution ~ RIREKA — EREMEIETE
schemes 221,311 214,860
Employee benefits expenses, including 1EE @AY @ BREE/HE
directors’ remuneration 13,491,384 16,823,214

BEMERKREBGRAF
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Year ended 31 December 2012

12. EEME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

BFE—F——F+-_A=1+—HIEE

Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s
and benefits contributions
in kind to pension
Name of director Note Fees (Note vi) scheme Total
e BER
EYflz BAREHEIZ
EEns liEsg we (Pi=Evi) - EREEA “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&I &I &I &I
Executive directors
BITES
Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman) — 1,200,000 13,750 1,213,750
FXEREE(ER)
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive) - 1,200,000 13,750 1,213,750
PR A (TTERAEEL)
Non-executive director
FHITEE
Mr. Liu Runtong - - - -
2R EE
Independent non-executive directors
BIFHITES
Professor Zhang Benzheng 130,000 — — 130,000
SRAN TE 0%
Mr. Tony | Tong (iii) 125,000 - - 125,000
EEEE
Mr. Li Jianxing (iii) 120,000 - - 120,000
FRITRE
Mr. Chen Shu Wen (v) 120,000 — — 120,000
BeRAGI S S
495,000 2,400,000 27,500 2,922,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

Name of director

BEEMA

Note

=
k=113
04

12. EEME(ZE)

BE—_T—S+-_A=+—HILEE

Salaries, Employer’s

allowances, contributions

and benefits in to pension

Fees kind (Note vi) scheme
e 2K

BNz RAEFEIZ

ik (Bt EEvi) BEHX

HKS HKS HK$

BT BT BT

Total

it
HKS
T

Executive directors

BITES

Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman)
FXEREAE(ERE)

Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive)
e e A (TTHUAREL)

Non-executive director
EQITEE

Mr. Liu Runtong

2 EREE

Independent non-executive directors
BIAKPTES
Professor Zhang Benzheng
SRAIEHIR

Mr. Zhang Fei Ze
SRR E

Dr. Tsang Hing Lun
LEBEL

Mr. Tony | Tong

EEEE

Mr. Li Jianxing

FRITRE

Mr. Wu Du Yong
REXKEE

Mr. Chen Shu Wen
BRAGI S SE A

= 1,200,000 12,000

= 1,200,000 12,000

128,809 = =

29,032 = =

95,098 = =

91,290 = =

10,870 = =

32,667 = =

1,212,000

1,212,000

128,809

29,032

95,098

91,290

10,870

32,667

387,766 2,400,000 24,000

2,811,766

BEMERKXEEERLAR —FT—"FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 12.

Notes:

(i) Resigned on 6 January 2011.
(ii) Resigned on 28 March 2011.
(iii) Appointed on 28 March 2011.

(iv) Appointed on 20 May 2011 and resigned on 21 June 2011.

(v) Appointed on 23 September 2011.

(Vi) Benefits in kind include share options. No share options were granted to
the directors of the Company under the Company’s share option scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2011: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2011: Nil).

1 06 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2011: two) directors whose
remuneration are set out in Note 12. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2011: three) individuals during the year
are as follows:

13.

AEmRBHAL
FAREERARSFALTEBERA(Z
T——F MBEF BEZHEER
12 - FRENBT=R(=ZF——
F:=ZB)ALZBEMT

2012 2011
- —T——F
HK$ HKS$
T BIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEEYN =

in kind 1,386,000 1,386,000

Pension costs — defined contribution ~ RIREKA — FEREMEIGTE
scheme 41,250 36,000
1,427,250 1,422,000

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEZMENFATEHE :

2012 2011

—®—=f —E——fF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

EE AR EEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 8

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2011:
Nil).

FR - AEEYERNAERSFHFALX
FHERIBNE 1AW S N SN N B AN &
EEZ BRI RBERAmE( =T ——
FE)

BEMERKXEEERLAR —FT—"FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

14.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived
from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits is
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

14. FifEBL(HR) BIX
FEMNESHARNFEREBELHIRE
BB (et ERBUR MBI E 16.6% (=
T——%F :16.5%)5tE  BINGEM 2B
BEASEXRGHMERRERER MK
xR pFERGFERTOEFE -

2012 2011
b —T——%F
HK$ HK$
BT Vow
Current income tax: BNEARTAS R
Current tax on profits for the year FEFHE 2 & BT E
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENET - —
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — HECEMREH - =
Underprovision in previous years RBEFERETE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMEFH - =
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — PEPEREH - 323,171
— 323,171
Total current tax B EATR TR AB RE - 323,171
Deferred income tax (Note 31): EIEFTISTR(FIREST) ¢
Current year REE (181,522) 4,379,334
Income tax (credit)/expense Frisfi (E®),Fx (181,522) 4,702,505
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EES

14.

15.

16.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) as follows:

14.

RSB (%) Fx(E)

WA T BBFGHE16.5% (=T —
—& 1 16.5% )5t H + AEB ZBRATEH
RIS IEF BS EIEREEN A

2012 2011
—B—_F —E——F
HK$ HK$
T BT

BRET1S Al ES 18

Loss before income tax

(39,589,171) (34,727,222)

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits BEBNISHE16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%)

ZT——%F :16.5%)

TE 2 BIE (6,532,213) (5,729,992)

Tax effects of: LATRIEE 2 M2
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries — REMAIEERLE 2

operating in other jurisdictions B A Rl 2 N RF = (2,290,659) (1,651,243)
— Income not subject to tax — BARBRA (1,249,258) (289,049)
— Expenses not deductible — FAFIE B AN AR R

for tax purposes 3,521,687 9,833,370
— Others — Hf 6,368,921 2,216,248
— Underprovision in previous years — BEFEREBETLR - 323,171
Tax (credit)/charge BIBUER) FX (181,522) 4,702,505
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 15. FABHAAEILEE
COMPANY
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in RARRIMBRREBIEZARREBA
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of FEIEETIR/R9,441,678BTL(—F——% :
HK$9,441,578 (2011: HK$6,472,389). 6,472,38987T) °
LOSS PER SHARE 16. SBikESE
Basic BX
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BREAEENIRBE_T——F1+=

attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012 of HK$39,019,328 (2011: HK$37,855,857) by
the weighted average number of 4,028,964,120 (2011:
3,955,539,462) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2012 did not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options and warrants outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

BENEAKREEARLT

A=+—BILEFEARRHEE ARILE
39,019,328 B (=& ——4F :
37,855,857 7T ) B F N E B 1T AR N
84,028,964, 120 % (= F——4 :
3,955,539,4620% )5t & °

e
BE-_ZT——FR-_ZT——F+-_A=
+—HIEFE  SREESEZTEL
FERBRAD T 2 RITEE I &R
BREBE-_T——FR=_T——-F+=
A=+—HLFEETE  REAITE
RO EIRERE -

=

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 3 - BB RRE

Office
equipment
Land and Leasehold and Computer Motor
The Group F£E buildings improvements furniture  equipment vehicles Total
WAESRE N ) .
TiRiET HEWMERE Rz ShERE RE @t
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT o BT BT
As at 1 January 2011 R=%¥——%-A-H
Cost AR - 2,768,359 11,864,386 2,795,124 5,446,831 22,874,700
Accumulated depreciation 25E - (1,874,783)  (4,495,316) (2,455,568) (1,535,149) (10,360,816)
Net book amount HREFE — 893,576 7,369,070 339,556 3,911,682 12,513,884
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-T——&
+ZA=+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount RS E - 893,576 7,369,070 339556 3911682 12,513,884
Additions NE 40,327,455 678,000 205,023 27,390 — 41,237,868
Exchange differences EXER - 15,462 264,387 - 90,880 370,729
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (94,869) — — (94,869)
Disposals HE - (167,650) (13,671) = = (181,321)
Depreciation charge FERS (1,478,838) (430587) (1,892,133  (305,301) (1,101,858) (5,208,717)
Closing net book amount HREEmFE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——%&
+=R=+—-H
Cost B 40,327,455 2,275,078 14,077,615 883,003 5,769,962 63,333,113
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (1478838)  (1286277) (8,239,808)  (821,358) (2,869,258) (14,695,539)
Net book amount HREFE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-E--F
+ZA=t+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
Additions NE - - 206,758 88,648 - 295,406
Exchange differences fEHER - 1,366 25,537 - 6,084 32,987
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (88,965) - - (88,965)
Disposals HE - - - - (20,353) (20,353)
Depreciation charge RS (1,612,933) (363,754) (1,718,097)  (49,303) (1,079,116) (4,823,203)
Closing net book amount HREEmFE 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
As at 31 December 2012 R-B—-Z%
+ZA=+-H
Cost AR 40,327,455 2,279,450 14,079,703 971,651  5764,719 63,422,978
Accumulated depreciation ZiHrE (3,001,771)  (1,653,037) (9,816,663  (870,661) (3,957,400) (19,389,532)
Net book amount IREFE 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
Note: As at 31 December 2012, the land and buildings with a carrying value of izt : R=ZZE——F+=-A=+—H KREER

387,235,684 87T (—F ——4 : 38,848,617
BIL) 2 T RETE AEERARE R
TTfER (BIFES0)

HK$37,235,684 (2011: HK$38,848,617) were pledged to secure the bank
borrowings of the Group (Note 30).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. % - MBRRWE)
Office
equipment
Leasehold and Computer Motor
The Company FAT improvements furniture  equipment vehicles Total
WATRM ‘ .
HEmERE RigH  EhEERE RE @t

HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS

BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2011 R=¥——%—-A—-H
Cost AR 1,160,890 343,592 536,003 1,731,412 3,771,897
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (838,418)  (251,023)  (450,497)  (480,948) (2,020,886)
Net book amount REFE 322,472 92,569 85,506 1,250,464 1,751,011
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-_F——F

+ZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HEREFE 322,472 92,569 85506 1,250,464 1,751,011
Additions RE 678,000 89,338 = = 767,338
Disposals e (161,235) (6,532) = - (167,767)
Depreciation charge WERX (207,568) (93,468) (69,791)  (577,137)  (947,964)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
As at 31 December 2011 R=¥——%+-RA=+-H
Cost 5% 678,000 191,511 295,407 1,731,412 2,896,330
Accumulated depreciation Z:HE (46,331)  (109,604)  (279,692) (1,058,085) (1,493,712)
Net book amount REFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-F-—&
+ZA=t+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount HREFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
Additions NE - 4,380 3,150 - 7,530
Depreciation charge FrERS (226,000  (30,999)  (13466)  (577,137)  (847,602)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 405,669 55,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
As at 31 December 2012 R=-B--%+-FA=+-H
Cost 5% 678,000 195,891 298,557 1,731,412 2,903,860
Accumulated depreciation 25tE (272,331)  (140,603)  (293,158) (1,635,222) (2,341,314)
Net book amount FEFE 405,669 55,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. HEME
The Group
XEE
2012 2011
—TE-=-fF T ——F
HK$ HKS$
#IT BIT
At fair value BAFEE
Opening balance at 1 January R—RA—R 2 B9 42,100,000 —
Acquisition g3 - 41,755,500
Net gains from fair value adjustment AT EFE 2 W F 58 4,400,000 344,500
Closing balance at 31 December R+ A=+—8 24 46,500,000 42,100,000

(@  The investment property held under long-term leases in
Hong Kong was valued at 31 December 2012 on an
open market value basis by Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent professional valuers.

(b) As at 31 December 2012, the investment property with a
carrying value of HK$46,500,000 (2011: HK$42,100,000)
was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group
(Note 30).
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
The Group F5E Goodwill Software  Trading rights Total
e 0 Rt @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2011 R=¥——%—-A—-H
Cost 5% 689,677,629 3,628,967 2,724,000 696,030,596
Accumulated amortization and impairment &t 8 & R(E (689,596,257) (3,628,967 (2,723,999) (695,949,223)
Net book amount BREFE 81,372 - 1 81,373
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-T——&
+ZA=+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 81,372 = 1 81,373
Exchange differences ERER 3,436 - - 3,436
Closing net book amount HIREFE 84,808 - 1 84,809
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——%
+ZB=+—-H
Cost RN 689,681,065 3,628,967 2,724,000 696,034,032
Accumulated amortization and impairment  ZiHEERRIE (689,596,257) (3,628,967) (0,723999)  (695,949,223)
Net book amount REFE 84,808 - 1 84,809
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-F--F
+ZR=+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FHEMFE 84,808 - 1 84,809
Additions NE - - 500,000 500,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries () WEHBAR) 4,231,282 4,957,880 - 9,189,162
Exchange differences ERESR (6,687) (27,040) - (33,727)
Disposal HE (84,540) - - (84,540)
Impaiment (i) AR (581,950) - (499,999) (1,081,949)
Amortization charge BE - (2,451,900) - (2,451,900)
Closing net book amount HERFE 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 6,121,855
As at 31 December 2012 R-B-——%
+-A=+—-H
Cost D% 693,827,539 8,586,847 3,224,000 705,638,386
Accumulated amortization and impairment &t 8 KR (E (690,184,626) (6,107,907) (3,223,998)  (699,516,531)
Net book amount REFE 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 6,121,855

EENEREEEERAT —T——F5H 13
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19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 85.715% interests in JRYIE A MR EFIRAA] (transliterated
as “Shenzhen Lian He Wu Xian Investment Company Limited”), thereby
resulting in a goodwill of HK$3,642,913. An impairment test of this
goodwill was carried out by management based on a value-in-use
calculation and with reference to a business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) in which Shenzhen Lian He Wu Xian Investment
Company Limited operates, has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation, which uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The key
assumptions used for the cash flow projections include budgeted revenue
and budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and its
expectation of market development. Cash flows beyond that five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3%. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industry in
which the CGU operates. All cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax
discount rate of 23.75% which reflects the specific risks relating to this
CGU.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 50% interests in JAYIT TR ARM AR AR (transliterated as
“Shenzhen Yuan Tong Video Technology Company Limited”), thereby
resulting in a goodwill of HK$588,369. Such goodwill was determined to
be fully impaired with reference to a business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2012 represent two (2011: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2011: Nil) trading right on
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired a trading
right on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”) at a
consideration of HK$500,000. An impairment loss of HK$499,999 was
recognized in respect of such trading right as at 31 December 2012.
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20. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 20. EERERHMGEE
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——f —E——fF
HK$ HK$
&IT BIT
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BAERREFEGRAF]
Company Limited (“HKSCC?) (BEEE)
— Contribution fund deposit — REESES 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit — B e 100,000 100,000

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong BRBERZMAERAR]

Limited
— Compensation fund deposit — BEESES 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit — BERESES 100,000 100,000
— Stamp duty deposit — EfERiL S 30,000 75,000
The Securities and Futures Commission &HEwEAFRHEEKEREZE S

of Hong Kong
— Deposits for responsible officers — BEAEES 100,000 100,000
HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited BAEHEHEEERAA

(“HKFECC”) ([BHHEEE))
— Reserve fund deposit — RAfEEskse 1,500,000 =

2,030,000 575,000

HEMCEEEEERAT —T——G45% 15
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. MRMBATZIRE

The Company

AAT]
2012 2011
—E——f —E——fF
HK$ HKS
ET BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - A 4,771,262 4,771,262
Less: Impairment loss recognized B ERBEETE (2) @)
4,771,260 4,771,260
Amounts due from and due to subsidiaries FE Mg % R £+ Pt B 23 B RRIE
Except for an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$24,632,958 ARAER-—KHMBRAREAR
(2011: HK$23,071,552) which is interest bearing at prime rate 24,632,958 B7L(—F——4F : 23,071,552
of commercial banks minus 2.25% per annum (2011: BIT) » JIERRITREBEARR2.25E 2
commercial banks minus 2.25% per annum), the amounts due FHRFE(ZF——F  BERITHE
from and due to subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s B2.25[8 2 FHIR) - BRILASN - RARF]
statement of financial position are unsecured, interest-free and BTSRRI 2 FEU I FE Y BHY E R )
repayable on demand. SR AEER - R B RERERERER -

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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HE—

21.

T——F+-A=t+—HItFE

G

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2012, all of which are wholly-owned by the

Group:

Name

=i

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity
AL,
FRILES R A E AR AR

21.

IUTAERZE

RMBATZRE(E)
——®+t-A=t—R2
ARREEMBARTRE - FEZEH

BARHHAAEEZERS

Principal activities and place of
operations

EREGREEHES

Particulars of issued share
capital/registered capital

ERTIRE SERRAEE

First China Financial Holdings (BVI)
Limited

First China Financial Holdings (BVI)
Limited

Stockmartnet Limited

SRt ARAR]

First China Financial Capital Limited

BECHRBERRAR

First China Securities Limited

BEESARAH

First China Processing Services Limited

First China Processing Services Limited

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

First China Global Wealth Management

Limited

BERHEFARAT

First China Property Limited

BEMWEARRAR

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
REBRAHS
BRATF]

Hong Kong,

Limited liability company
B

BIRAT

Hong Kong,

Limited liability company
BE

BIRAT]

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company

B
BRAT

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company
BB

BRAR]

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
REBRLHS
BRAR]

Hong Kong,

Limited liability company
B -

BRAA]

Hong Kong,

Limited liability company
e b

BIRAT]

Investment holding

RERR

Securities trading in Hong Kong

REBRFIEHFEER

Provision of corporate finance services
in Hong Kong
REBRECEZRE R

Securities and futures brokerage and
securities margin financing services in
Hong Kong

REBREES RAELLIAR
BAHRE DR E RF

Provision of a trading platform

in Hong Kong

REBRER ST A

Investment holding

REER

Provision of wealth management
services in Hong Kong

NEBRHEME EERY

Property investment

MEKE

BENEAKREEARLT

611,700 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

611,700 FAREE13ETT
2 AR

3 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
SRR E BB T 2 E AR

2,400,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2,400,0000% AR EE 1B T
2 EBER

57,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

57,000,000/ SR 175 7E
2B

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2 EREEE T BB

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1R GIREE1ET 2 LBk
6,000,000 ordinary shares

of HK$1 each
6,000,000% AR E B 14T

2 &k
1 ordinary share of HK$1 each

1 REREE BT TR

=

7
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

21.

Principal activities and place of

RMBATZIRE(E)

Particulars of issued share

Name of legal entity operations capital/registered capital

SR AL, RSB RE R
&7 HRER TEEBREEME ERITIRA SRR
First China Estates Company Limited Hong Kong, Property holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each

BEEXARAA

Aceview International Limited

HRERERAR

GoHi Holdings Limited

GoHi Holdings Limited

BEESFAAFIDBRAT
(transliterated as First China
Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)
EEFHARINERAT

RYIIERAAR X BERR AR
(transliterated as Shenzhen Sky
Picture Culture Communications
Company Limited) (Note)

RINEBRIARSULEEBR R A
(Pi=E)

Y E BRI AR AR
(transliterated as Shenzhen Wealth
Alliance Networking Company
Limited) (“Wealth Alliance”) (Note)

RN E BB R AR A
(M= 8 D(KT=E)

YIS ERIREFRAA]
(transliterated as Shenzhen Lian He
Wu Xian Investment Company
Limited) (Note)

RYI A ERIREGR AR ()

Limited liability company
B
BRAT]

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
REBRLHS
BRAR

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
EEERHE
BRAA]

PRC,
Foreign wholly-owned
enterprise

PE
BINERE

PRC,
Limited liability company

i
BRAR

PRC,
Limited liability company

PR

BRAT

PRC,
Limited liability company

i
BRAR

FEMFE

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of stock information and
research services in the PRC

AR ERHEAR R E A R AR

Investment holding and provision of
development and design of TV
programs and artwork in the PRC

AR EREZER -
R KR ERE E KM

Development and sales of software for
information network equipment,
terminal products and calculators in
the PRC

R B3 RSN E B AR R B
1 o At E AR

Development and sales of software for
network and communication
equipment, calculators, security
surveillance products and terminal
products in the PRC

R B G 85 R SHE AR OB R R 5T
B2 DR ERIE R
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1 BEEE 1 BT Bk

1 ordinary share of US$1 each

1REREEIRTZ TR

35,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

35,0000k AR EE1357T
2 &Rk

Registered capital of

RMB40,000,000

#Hi & A8 & A R #40,000,0007T

Registered capital of
RMB3,000,000

& A A AR #S,000,0007T

Registered capital of
RMB10,000,000

#H1E A& AR %10,000,0007T

Registered capital of
RMB7,000,000

& A& A R #7,000,0007T
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuead) 21.

Note: The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly held by
nominees on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100% effective
interest in these subsidiaries.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RIBATZIRE(E)

Mzt : BRBARKRAEEEEMEZGZEN
BARZBRAELD  RASEREZENE
AR100%EFEHERS ©

EREIEERREAREXRELEE
BREIBXEZWEBLRR -EEZRR -
AR BARZ EREERFREE
RITE e

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, NEBATZIRE
The Group
AEHE

2012 2011
—F—=% —T——F
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
Beginning of the year F4 1,676,076 669,056
Additions NE - 1,229,830
Disposals HE (1,341,765) =
Exchange differences IE W =RE 9,515 22,733
Share of losses FEfh 518 (328,356) (245,543)
End of the year FR 15,470 1,676,076

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2012 are

RN—_ZE——F+_A=+—H x&EE

as follows: kN o= (N
Particulars of Interest
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities issued shares held held
& SE M A SL 3 B EEER FiisE B TIRID 1 P
AR B R s BRI AR A A PRC, Development and sales of software  Registered capital 40%
Limited liability company for information network of RMB1,000,000

equipment, terminal products and

calculators in the PRC
AR B AR s BRI AR AR HE R B G E R SHE B Al AR =R 1 HEMERE 40%

ARAR ZEME - RImEE T RETE B AR #1,000,0007T

BEMERKXEEERLAR —FT—"FFH

49
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, REBEATZBEE)
The following is the summarized financial information in respect TRBARANEBEEZ QB 2 EEREE
of the Group’s associates as extracted from unaudited ZREEERE S ——F R T —
management accounts for the years ended 31 December 2011 —HE+ AT HUEFEZREEZ
and 2012: BIRERA :
2012 2011
—EF—=F —F—%F
HK$ HK$
BT VBT
Assets BE 60,665 17,137,346
Liabilities BB 21,992 14,037,559
Revenues e 101,167 778,350
Losses &8 4,269,345 7,421,120
Amounts due from and due to associates FEW 3% FE 11 B 2 A TR IE
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the amounts due from and R-B——FR_F——F+-H=+
due to associates are unsecured, interest-free, denominated in —H - BRRENEERFRIARELR
RMB and repayable on demand. 0B BARKEINBEREBRERE
2o
23. INVENTORIES 23. BE
The Group
F5E
2012 2011
—E—C-F —E——fF
HK$ HK$
BT VBT
Finished goods X o 5,458,255 140,514
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EES

25.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

24. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24, HEEERSE
The Group
AEEH
2012 2011
—E——f —E——fF
HK$ HK$
&I o
Equity securities listed on the Shenzhen RERIIESZE F AT EH
Stock Exchange at market value 2B EETE - 2,110,359
The fair value of the above equity securities was based on their R AR S 2 A ERE SR EE R
current bid prices in an active market. Mgz EBETHE -
TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. FEUARTR
The Group
F5%E
2012 2011
—F—=F —T—%
HK$ HK$
&I 7SIT
Amounts receivable arising from RBHIC D TSP EE A R YEIR
securities broking:
Margin clients REBESEP 2,058,785 1,487,893
Cash clients ReEP 1,970,362 2,908,309
Brokers and dealers KR X5 6 6
Other trade receivables H b pEURBR TR 119,729 118,346
Trade receivables, net JEULEBRTR  FRE 4,148,882 4,514,554

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable on
demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates and are
secured by clients’ pledged securities which are listed on the
Stock Exchange with a total market value of approximately
HK$14,248,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$1,297,000).
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors,
the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of the business of securities margin financing.

BENEAKREEARLT

BURIRFBERPRIHAREREFERE
BIRITMISHNEGTE  WARFRZZ
——F+_A=+t—HELAWEY
14,248,000/ 7T (=& ——4 : 1,297,000
BIT) 2B R P LIRS BRI o B
RBEFRBEMEXEB2ME EFR
RER T EE[EIMEE - WAKE
WEERER DT o

—Z—_FER

121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

Other trade receivables arising from the provision of corporate
finance services and wealth management services are due
immediately from date of biling but the Group will generally
grant a credit period of 30 days on average to its customers.
Trade receivables arising from the provision of stock information
and research services are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days
(2011: 30 to 90 days).

The following is an aged analysis of other trade receivables at
the reporting period:

25.

FEWIRRTR (42)
EF R EBEERYGRIAERETR
ZFRABPR—IMERXH BRI - KL
AW IREFE R TP RIAIN » BN Z Rk
R=THA -

RECERERG AN EERERGE
2 EMERARR - RBLREZBAD
SEH EAEE-REETEEST
B=1+RZEED - RHREEALN
ERBELEZ REERZEERAS=1
ENtBE(CEE——F: =FTENTH)-

H At 1R W BR K7 3R 45 HA R 2 BR e 5 n
™

The Group
FEE

2012 2011
—T——-F —T——fF
HK$ HK$
T BIT
0-30 days 0£30H 83,729 118,346
31-90 days 31Z290H - —
91-180 days 91£E180H - —
181-365 days 1812365H 36,000 —
Over 365 days 365H A £ - =
119,729 118,346

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables. Other than
the amounts receivable from margin clients, the Group does not
hold any collateral as security in respect of its trade receivables.

1 22 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEWBRRR (&)
As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately RZE—Z—F+_HA=+—08 " EKKk
HK$36,000 (2011: Nil) were past due but not impaired. These HAI36,000 B T(ZT——F | H)E@
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is HE®RRE ZERUETSRET
no recent history of default. The aged analysis of these trade W EAE AL BB R R IB 2 BB © %
receivables is as follows: ZRBIRFZ R DT

2012 2011

—®——% -5

HK$ HK$

T Y5

0-30 days 0Z30H - —
31-90 days 31Z290H - —
91-180 days 91£E180H - —
181-365 days 1812365H 36,000 —
Over 365 days 365H A £ - =
36,000 =

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are NE B FEUER R 2 BRE BRI T B3
denominated in the following currencies: & :

The Group
F&E
2012 2011
—B——%f —E——fF
HK$ HK$
&IT SIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,066,705 4,485,351
RMB AR 82,177 29,203
4,148,882 4,514,554
BENKRZREERFRAT —T— 555
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEMIARTR(#=Z)
Movements on the provision of impairment of trade receivables FEWER SR B R 2 BRI T ¢

are as follows:

The Group
%A
2012 2011
—E——f =%
HK$ HKS
&I 7SI
At 1 January n—H—H - 123,192
Receivables written off during F N1 AE LI B FRIBHEE

the year as uncollectible < FEWEIR - (123,192)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - —

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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26.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2012 were the following amounts due from related parties:

26. FAMRIA » HERAMEKKRIE

RZE——F+-_A=+—H ' ~&EEH
2 HERFIBEE Y EWR A BEEA

TRUE -
Highest
balance
outstanding
during the
year The Group The Company
ERRE
FUgEILEER F&EH AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F T Z%-ZF —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
PIT I PBIT I T
Amounts due from related parties e BEAEANTRIE
FY T EEREER AR (transliterated RN EEREERAR

as “Shenzhen Guangxin Investment (ORYIESE D (B ()

Company Limited”) (“Shenzhen

Guangxin”) (Note (a)) 5,461,704 5,405,358 5,461,704 - —
EBRERZAREBABRAA EREREFIREEH

(transliterated as “Guangdong BRAT

Brightzone Financial Company Limited”) (ERER])

(“Guangdong Brightzone”) (Note (b)) ) 2,374,982 2,374,982 39,354 - —
Directors of subsidiaries MEBARES - 6,912,043 - -
Director of an associate BENRIEE - 1,229,830 - =

7,780,340 13,642,931 - —
Other receivables H it & WK IR 7,484,850 14,105,249 - -
Other deposits and prepayments Hihize RFEMNKIE 1,138,312 3,101,224 179,724 99,577
16,403,502 30,849,404 179,724 99,577
Notes: B -
(@) Shenzhen Guangxin is a limited company established in the PRC and is (@) RINEET—RRPEKZZBRAR - @

controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who is
a director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

(b) Guangdong Brightzone is a limited company established in the PRC and is
controlled by Shenzhen Guangxin which is a related company of the
Company.

(c) The amounts due from the above related parties are unsecured, interest-
free, denominated in RMB and repayable on demand.

AABRESFEIERREXALEZRBR
KE P o

ERERD—FHRTBEKRIZERAR - &
RRRIBER AR EEES] -

FEU 5 A B A TR A SRR - RS
AARBINERBIREZRIEE -

BEMERKXEEERLAR —FT—"FFH
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

27. SRITHEGRIEE

The Group The Company
X EE AAT]

2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-—=-F —T——F =ZFT-=-fF£ —T—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&I BT &I BT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEEIR4E 20,352,602 46,302,258 364,241 8,117,805
Maximum exposure to credit risk {EEE & FFR 20,352,602 46,302,258 364,241 8,117,805

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$432,000 (2011: HK$7,981,000) which
are denominated in RMB. The remittance of these funds out of
the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

Bank balances and cash include the following for the purposes
of the consolidated statement of cash flows:

RZE——F+-_A=+—8 "  £A5H
EUAREIEZEBTEGHRESY
432,000/ 70(=F——14F : 7,981,000/%
TT) ° $Ee%E FUANE ) BR INZ R B K
& 152 SINPE B I ATRR

BRARTESKERNEERFRAEOSE
RECERZIRIT

MR RERERME - RITEBRNER
T EIBA TSR

The Group
AEHE

2012 2011
—F—=-F —E——fF
HK$ HK$
#&TT BIT
Cash at bank and on hand SRITRFERE 20,352,602 46,302,258
Segregated trust bank balances B EFIR P &R (5,790,644) (6,652,228)
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEER 14,561,958 39,650,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES

28. FEfTERFR

The Group
AEEH
2012 2011
-5 —=——fF
HK$ HKS$
I o
Amounts payable arising from securities &34 40 TS AT E A B 3K
broking:
Margin clients RESEF 101,722 761,498
Cash clients HeERP 6,109,461 6,683,082
HKSCC EBEE 1,164,750 1,561,633
Other trade payables H A FERTER SR 761,164 80,884
8,137,097 9,087,097

Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand
and bearing interest at prevailing market rates. No aged analysis
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of the
business of securities margin financing.

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from securities
broking are one or two trade days after the trade execution
date. Except for the amounts payable to margin clients as
mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30 days.

BNREBEEPRAANBERFEE -
BRITMSHEGFE - ERBHRES
MEXB ML  EFRR/REOML
ELMBRIMEE  BURBRBERED -

BHER R TG EEIE FOBBREAT
%5 A8k —RMERSERZH - B

L ENRES TP R

=+ERNBEE -

BENEAKREEARLT

B ﬁ%?ﬂiﬁﬁ/‘

= e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EES

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

29.

28. FEfTERFR(ZZ)

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the HMEMERRN G REAREREDT
end of each reporting period: U
The Group
A5KE
2012 2011
—g—--fF —T——F
HK$ HKS
&I 7SI
0-30 days 0£30H 1,173 932
31-90 days 31290H - —
91-180 days 912180H - —
181-365 days 181%£365H 754,094 —
Over 365 days 3658 M £ 5,897 79,952
761,164 80,884

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. HAthFEFIFRIA R FERT IR

Amounts due to related  FEFTHEIEAN TR
parties: I8 :

A director of a subsidiary WEBARIZES 2 FIAE

A director of the Company ARARESEZFHE

Non-controlling interests FEfE AR i R 2 FIE

The Group The Company
S #47

2012 2011 2012 2011
—¥--F —T—F % T
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T PETT AT BT
- 6,788,662 - —
50,000 50,000 - —
- 241,047 - —

Other payables and accruals Hfth &1 FIB &
FERTFIE

50,000 7,079,709 - —

2,928,423 5,008,529 777,500 1,286,387

2,978,423 12,088,238 777,500 1,286,387
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

30. BORROWINGS 30. f&®
The Group
2012 2011
—E—_f —T——%F
HK$ HKS
&IT BIT
Secured bank borrowings BEAERITER 33,066,172 36,252,047
Notes: PR -
(@) The maturity profile of the bank borrowings is as follows (note (c)): (@ RITHERE S A FEL T () |
The Group
F&HE
2012 2011
—F—=F —EB——fF
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Within one year —FR 3,280,545 3,190,991
In the second year F_F 3,373,020 3,287,894
In the third to fifth year E=ZaasE 10,698,770 10,420,418
QOver five years BiEAF 15,713,837 19,352,744
33,066,172 36,252,047
(b) At 31 December 2012, the bank borrowings were secured by charges (b) R-ZT——F+—-A=+—8H - RITEKH

over the Group’s land and buildings (Note 17) and investment property
(Note 18) and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (Note 39).
At 31 December 2012, the bank borrowings are denominated in HK$,
bearing floating interest rate of 2.25% to 3.00% (2011: 2.11% to 3.00%)
per annum.

() The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.

(d) The bank borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan
agreements contain a repayment on demand clause.

AEEZ i RIEF(HIE17) RIEEWHE
(MIEE18)1ERIEIR - WARAR AR ARE
R(KIER39)  M—B——F+=-A=+—
B - RITIEFREABITTINE - SEFLEE
225FZE3.00E(=F——F : 2.11EZE3.00
BE)&tE -

(©) F& A5 & R T 4% B R Whp it PR TRUE S8 3K B BT
& o

=

(d) H N ER B A I R SR (EAR 6K - R
TERBIRRBEERET -

BEMERKXEEERLAR —FT—"FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 31. BEFBHAR
The movement in the deferred income tax liabilities account is BIEFSHAE 2 ZEHT -
as follows:
The Group
A5KE
2012 2011
—g-=% —T——%
HK$ HK$
&I 7SI
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,379,334 —
(Credit)/charged to the consolidated (F0BR),FHt AR A ZEBRARE
statement of comprehensive income (181,522) 4,379,334
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 4,197,812 4,379,334
The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated FIEFSH A EREMRBBHE -
tax depreciation.
A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the AR BETEE B &5 F 2R - Hl E R
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated unused RE MG HmAR A ANKER R ER 2
tax losses available for offset against future profits due to the B ARADATNBEEBERREHRESR
uncertainty of future profit streams. These unrecognized E o ZEAERE R =B EAR -
temporary differences have no expiry date.
As at 31 December 2012, the unrecognized deferred tax assets RZFE——F+-A=+—8  A5E
of the Group and the Company are as follows: RARRZ RERELERIBEET ¢
The Group The Company
AEE EAT]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—Fg-—F T & CZB-Z—HF T
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
&I PEIT I BIT
Unused tax losses REBEFHEE 121,714,540 25,756,813 2,487,022 15,255,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EES

32.

33.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 32. BRAREE
Number of Ordinary Share
issued shares shares premium Total
BT
RiEE Tk IR iia(E st
Note (in thousands) HKS$ HK$ HK$
BizE (FhR) BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2011 RZE——F—A
—H 3,828,964 38,289,642 862,819,484 901,109,126
Issue of shares through: BBATHR
BITRAD :
Issue of Consideration Shares HUEEHT B A A
in respect of acquisition BIIRERR
of subsidiaries (i) 200,000 2,000,000 166,000,000 168,000,000
As at 31 December 2011 NR-F——
and 31 December 2012 +=-A=+-—H
R-T—ZF
+=A=+—H 4,028,964 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 1,069,109,126
The total authorized number of ordinary share is 10,000,000,000 JATE E AR 48 214 10,000,000,000 % (=
shares (2011: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of Z——4 : 10,000,000,000 %) * EHE
HK$0.01 per share (2011: HK$0.01 per share). All issued shares BEA0OIBIL(ZE—% : BR0.01%
are fully paid. JL) ° FTABEEITRORFIEHR -
Note: Bff5E
0] On 16 May 2011, 200,000,000 Consideration Shares of HK$0.01 each (i) RBEKZ S BB FATiEE2E T I§MH
were issued to the vendor as contingent consideration for the acquisition (FfizE35(d)) + E 1t 200,000,000 A% &A% EE
of GoHi Holdings Limited due to the fulfilment of certain conditions as 0.01 B2 REBRONR=_F——FAHA T
stipulated in the agreements (Note 35 (d)). HETTER  AEARYEE GoHi Holdings
Limited 2 Sk AR AE ©
SPECIAL RESERVE 33. RlEEE

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of First China Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the corporate
reorganization undertaken in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January 2002.

BENEAKREEARLT

REE 2R REEBETEARRRIERE
HBARATIROAR-_ZTE-_F—A+—H
FERIZER EMATETRESTAMBITR
2 EE BT BEFirst China Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited 2 217X AN EIE &
B imBAARER - =58 ©

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(@)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) under which persons working for
the interest of the Group are entitled to an opportunity to
obtain equity interest in the Company. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Old
Share Option Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company to any person (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant of options shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The purpose
of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide the people
and the parties working for the interest of the Group with
an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company,
thus linking their interest with the interest of the Group
and thereby providing them with an incentive to work
better for the interest of the Group. Under the Share
Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

34. HERHERTE

(@)
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FHEl)  mARKENETHEZA
TERESERARAIRME - FRIFE
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RRRBRBER —ZTT—F+_-A+
TRBBZRER  RANERRE
AHEl - ERRE B EERRAS
BAETIE2 ATRHABBARE
PR - 1R E 2 Man il
REBZMZHER  URBRER
AEEZ MR THEAB AN - RIB
BREERE ARFEEEUME
ERER (BEARBRENEAR
AIES)RHOBRE  URBEAR
AR o BESN - AN R] AT ANE A A
RE=ZTREBERE - UXZF
ATRAAKERHEMIRFEZE
A -

EABRRER AR S IRR M 2B
B 1B - BRE—RAINE

BRAMBARAZ BB A ETRE
BT - B ZTEMRAE
B B R TS RBA T F -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(@)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

On 5 September 2007, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 32,400,000 shares of the Company were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company.

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 84,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company. The fair value of 84,000,000 share options
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme on 13 April
2010 was determined by the directors to be
HK$23,382,573 with reference to a valuation performed
by an independent firm of professional valuers using a
binomial model. The inputs into the model included grant
date share price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419
per share, expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option
life of 10 years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-
free interest rate of 2.833%.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 21 June
2012,

BENEAKREEARLT

34. RERRMERTEIE)

(@)

ErEmRERTElI(E)
TEERESSETE B TMERT
=%z &aERE : () A2 a”R G5
PRI BHEZ WHT(E : (i) RDRE
BERHAHATRAESER 2 FHK
E s i) HEE -

RZZBZLFNARA @ AEARF
ETEEFREERLAURBEHR

32,400,000 fx A& 2~ &) &0 2 B A%
T o

R=ZZE—ZTFMA+=8 ' ALRQ
AAETESKEERHARESH
84,000,000 fx A2~ &) & 10 2 B A%
7 o BELERB I HEGHEMZ
IR EREETTZAEERR
B RZE—ZFNA+=ARE
E IR FERT 895 1 2 84,000,0001%
BN 2 AN F1E 523,382,573 7%
T o EEER 2@ AR EER D
BEZR(EA0.487T « 1TEESE
Fi0.4198 L BHKERA
103.41% - TEHAREAREHR 210
F . JEHIRE AT RiAFHER R
R 52 833% °

AR _ZEZT—F+-_H++tH
R EBREAZIN =S —F
+=A+<ABEIH - ARFR=
T——FRNA -+ HERAFER
R B ([ FriEhRiERT 8l ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—Z——Ft+t-A=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. MBRRHESTEI(E)
(@) The OIld Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EHERRESTEIZE)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TEREEHZE—_ZT——F+=-_A=
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme T—HIEFERRERRET ST
during the year ended 31 December 2012: R ERE . #F)
Number of share options
ERENE
Outstanding as Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding as
Exercise at 1 January during during at 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2012 the year the year 2012
RZF-Z% RZF-Z%
-A-H +ZA=t+-H
RRNERE RHEH fTieE  fTiEHRE HRITE ERTE ERER BRITE
Mr. Wang Wenming (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
ENRELE(RITES) —¥-%£MA+=R 0419%T —T-TENA+=EE-F-TEMNA+=H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
FRHKL(RITES) —¥-%£MA+=R 0.419%T —FT-TEMA+=EE-T-TEMA+=H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
FRHKL(RITES) —¥TtENARA 0215%% —FTLEAARAE-T—tEAANA
Mr. Liu Runtong (non-executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
SIBREL (FRTES) —¥-%£MA+=R 0.419%T —FT-TEMA+ZEE-T-TEMA+=H
Professor Zhang Benzheng (independent 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
non-executive director
RAERR(BILENTES) —¥-¥5MA+=8 0419%T —T-TENA+=HE-F-TFMNA+ZH
Sub-total for directors 81,778,042 - - 81,778,042
B2t
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - - 8,496,421
=&RE —¥-TFNA+=R 0419%T —F-TENA+=BE-T-FFWA+=H
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—&EE —FE¥tELALE 02158 —EFtEAARAE-T—tEAAMNA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 - - 9,027,447
wRN
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
@t
Weighted average exercise price 0.408 - - 0.408
IS TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—Z——Ft+t-A=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, MERxtEsEI(E)
(@) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EBERRESTEIE)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREBEHE_T——F+=-A=
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme T—HIEFERBERRETSIFT
during the year ended 31 December 2011: R ERE 28

Number of share options

FERESE
Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding as at

Outstanding as at during during 31 December

Name of grantee Date of grant Exercise price  Exercisable period 1 January 2011 the year the year 2011
Rog——% ;
—A—A
ARARTE R EH e {TEHE AT ERIRE FRER HALTE
Mr. Wang Wenming (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
EXREEETES) ZT-TEMAT=H 0.41987T 3 3
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
FRALEGTES) ZT-TEMAT=H 041987 —Z-TEMA+=AZ-_ZT-TEMNATH
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
FRALEGTES) “ZTHENARR 0.215/ 7T ZT+ENARRZ-T—+ENAMA
Mr. Liu Runtong (non-executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,675 - - 31,861,575
BEREE(FRTES) —T-TEMA+=H 0419%T —ET-TEMAT=AZ-FT-FTEMA+=H
Dr. Tsang Hing Lun (independent non- 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 3,186,158 - (3,186,158) -
executive director)
CERALTBUFRTES) —T-TFMA+=A 0419%T —E-TFNAT=BRE-_F_FFNA+-H
Professor Zhang Benzheng (independent 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 = = 2,124,105
non-executive director

RAEHAK (BUIHTES) —Z-TENA+=H 0419%T —T-TFMAT=HRE-FT-TFMA+=H
Sub-total for directors 84,964,200 - (3,186,158) 81,778,042
EF Gt
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - = 8,496,421
—%EE —T-TFMA+=AH 0419%T —T-TFNAT=BE_F_FFWNA+-H
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 = = 531,026
—%ES —ZTLFNARA 0.21587C E+FNARRZE-_T—tFNANA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 - - 9,027,447
(=0
Total 93,991,647 = (3,186,158) 90,805,489
@5t
Weighted average exercise price 0.409 = 0419 0.408
I TERE

EERCAREBRERAT —T——G5% 135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(@)

(b)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 90,805,489
(2011: 90,805,489) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 90,805,489 (2011:
90,805,489) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$908,055 (2011:
HK$908,055) and share premium of HK$36,164,481 (2011:
HK$36,164,481).

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) under which person working
for the interest of the Group are entitled to an opportunity
to obtain equity interest in the Company. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company to any person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of options shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and the
parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better for
the interest of the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to outside third parties for settlement in
respect of goods or services provided to the Group.
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34. RERRMERTEIE)

(@)

(b)

ErRERERTEI(E)

RZZE——F+ZHA=1+—H &
A A1 90,805,489 1 (=T ——
4 : 90,805,489 17 ) IR IE E B A4
FHEIE L 2 B M R TE - RIR
RARRITEREBNE - WET
2 BIEEEmITEE - BB BRI
%%1790,805,489 % (=T ——4 :
90,805,489 &) AA &) E A% - BA
N EE A RBSNIR AN 908,055 T (=&
——4F : 908,055/ 7C) IR 15 i (B
36,164,481 Bt (=T — —F :
36,164,481 7T) °

ARBRR AT &
ARRIRBBEAETE (R
EErElD)  BAAKENETIEZ
AT BHESEBMARRIIHE - BRIF
ERARRRRERIE - TRIR
IR I A B R R E b B A AR
FHEIA TR 2 AR TS AR D
2B - TREAARRTEDET
i 80% ° BRIFEF[ARRIBIRE
SEHUAE - DRINIR L REAE B HiA)
EfI+ & A 8 - ARIEFTREAE
A8 R AR BE T A A B A T 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five consecutive Trading
Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Yuan
Tong Video Technology Company Limited

On 27 February 2012, the Group acquired the remaining
50% interests in RIITWIITBEEALME R A F
(transliterated as “Shenzhen Yuan Tong Video Technology
Company Limited”) at a cash consideration of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,239,470).

34. RERRMERTEIE)

(b)

BT 8 (E)

EABRER ARSI L 2B

BB - BIRE—RAIRE
SRAMEARAZ BEAEAE

BT - B ITERRAR

R A e TSR T E -

TEERESSET B ™MERT
N=FZ2&SER () AQEKG
KRB BE 2 RTH{E 5 (i) BRI E
EROBHEERERS H 2 F
BB Ri)ANRBRMDEE -

35. ¥EBEH

(a)

BN RYIT T B R AR B R
AT 2L
RZEBE——F_A-++H ' &&E
E U BRI BR MR E R A
RIZ B T E0%ER  HERBEAA
R# 1,000,000 T (HEER
1,239,470/ 7T) °

Consideration transferred R CE
HK$
BIT
Cash Be 1,239,470

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,759 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognized as an expense in the period, within
the “other operating expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BENEAKREEARLT

HINFEA R 2 XAN1,759 8 T R
FFABZE R EBREERRBEA
X MALRAZERATREREA
[EEREFRX TR -

—Z—_FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. ¥BEHGE)
(@) Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Yuan (@) IR B R AR A FR
Tong Video Technology Company Limited (continued) AT 2R (E)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of RhE AR B S =R B ERE
acquisition: =3
HK$
BIT
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits TERFEIR « e RHALEWEIR
and other receivables 3,966,303
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 5,162
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R R 32,542
Current liabilities mENE &
Other payables and accruals E A B3R I8 R FERTFRIE (2,701,808)
Net assets BEESE 1,302,204
Goodwill arising on acquisition of Shenzhen Yuan Tong Wk R T AR A I B R 2 Al
Video Technology Company Limited: EEZEHE
HK$
BIT
Consideration transferred HEZRE 1,239,470
Plus: fair value of previously held o AEREREC ATE
equity interest 651,103
Less: fair value of net assets B BB EFE( ) 2 ATHE
acquired — shown as above (1,302,204)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BB EE L 2 B (MI7E19)
(Note 19) 588,369
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BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(@)

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Yuan
Tong Video Technology Company Limited (continued)
Gooawill arising on acquisition of Shenzhen Yuan Tong
Video Technology Company Limited: (continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Shenzhen Yuan Tong
Video Technology Company Limited because the cost of
the combination included a control premium. Such
goodwill is not deductible for tax purpose.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary:

35. ¥EBEHE)

(@)

MR R Y T o B AR R TR PR
AT 2R (E)

WRERI T T BTN B R A
ELXZHE: (&)
WRERII MR AR ER AR
EERE TG A B FE TR fIHE
wlE - HAME - & EALEN
o

YWk — & 2 Al 2 B2 i F

7

HK$

PBTT

Consideration paid in cash e 2 RE 1,239,470
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BRERS KR EFEER

acquired (5,162)

1,234,308

Had this business combination been effected at 1 January
2012, the revenue of the Group would have been
approximately HK$10,350,000, and the loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$39,438,000. The
directors consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the
combined group on an annualized basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.

BENEAKREEARLT

WZEFAHEN - E——F—H
—BAERR - NEEZ EEEELLD
10,350,00078 7T © MEEEIEES
#739,438,000/87C - EERAE ' %
LB | BEBAREFEEGE
ZEHEEXEE BB EWEA
RIRHAR 2 L BRELAE S, o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—

——H+-A=t—HALFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Lian
He Wu Xian Investment Company Limited

On 21 November 2012, the Group acquired the remaining
85.715% interests in RINIBMEEREKEEGRA
(transliterated as “Shenzhen Llan He Wu Xian Investment
Company Limited”) at a cash consideration of
RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,436,820).

35. ¥BEHE)

(b)

BEIMGEBE
Bl
RZZE——F+—A=+—H ' ' &
EEERYIB A ERITEGEA
Al Z A1 85.715% /% @ BHEN(E
B AR 6,000,000 7T (HER
7,436,82078 7T ) °

A S ERIRER/RA

Consideration transferred BE B
HKS
BIT
Cash B 7,436,820

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$10,292 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognized as an expense in the period, within
the “other operating expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of
acquisition:

BB AR 2 X AN10,292/8 TR
FFABZEsAEREE®HARBA[A
FIS - AR %EH&Z)\#E@%W
[ B A& 2R 158k

P B AR E WE B ZE R E R A
/& -

HK$
BIT
Current assets RENEE
Inventories T8 212,035
Trade receivables JEHBE TR 102,405
Prepayment, deposits TEFRIE ~ e R EAMEWGRIE
and other receivables 448,931
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRNIRE 33,780
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B R 134,346
Intangible assets B EE 4,957,880
Current liabilities RENARE
Trade payables FERTARSR (61,490)
Other payables and accruals HAth < 5RIE I FE 5T 5RIE (1,401,664)
Net assets BESE 4,426,223

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. EBEH(E)
(b) Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Lian (b) MBI S ERIZTEFRA
He Wu Xian Investment Company Limited (continued) T2 tEm(E)
Gooawill arising on acquisition of Shenzhen Lian He Wu W FN i & AR 18 B B IR 2 Al
Xian Investment Company Limited: EZEE
HK$
BT
Consideration transferred EEZRE 7,436,820
Plus: fair value of previously held o AEREIREZ AE
equity interest 632,316
Less: fair value of net assets B BB E EFE (R EXEE) 2 A HE
acquired — shown as above (4,426,223)
Goodwill arising on acquisition B U E £ 2 B (EE19)

(Note 19) 3,642,913
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Shenzhen Lian He Wu W R B A ERIGEBRARE
Xian Investment Company Limited because the cost of the ERE TR A HR A B IR R
combination included a control premium. In addition, the 8o ltoh  aHFZENREERE
consideration paid for the combination effectively included 1 BT HA 15 [B) e 2 M) 2 oA 31
amounts in relation to the benefit of expected synergies AERKERRAG ZEFELR
and revenue growth of Shenzhen Lian He Wu Xian EAz25 -  BRNZENE TS
Investment Company Limited and these benefits are not A BB E B B 2 FERIRZE - BT
recognized separately from goodwill because they do not AIEAREE S R ° BLBIEMmMS -
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible B EAR
assets. Such goodwill is not deductible for tax purpose.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary: Wl — BB A Bl B2 7w itF

B

HK$

P IT

Consideration paid in cash RSz RE 7,436,820
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BNERES KRS EEIAE

acquired (83,780)

7,403,040
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BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Lian
He Wu Xian Investment Company Limited (continued)
Had this business combination been effected at 1 January
2012, the revenue of the Group would have been
approximately HK$10,357,000, and the loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$37,030,000. The
directors consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the
combined group on an annualized basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen All Win
Investment Consultancy Company Limited

On 15 April 2011, the Group acquired an additional 49%
interests in a subsidiary FIIJLEHLE R REGR QA (formerly
known as “FYIBEZEEIFEHIBRAR]) (ranslterated as
Shenzhen All Win Investment Consultancy Company Limited)
at a cash consideration of RMB1 (equivalent to HK$1).

Acquisition of the GoHi Group

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Aceview International
Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement dated
11 July 2007 (as amended by a supplemental agreement
dated 30 July 2007) with Fame Treasure Limited (the
“Seller”) and Mr. Wang Wenming (the “Warrantor”), in
relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of GoHi Holdings Limited. GoHi Holdings Limited and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, First China Securities Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (collectively, the “GoHi Group”) were
principally engaged in the provision of stock information and
research services in the PRC.

Pursuant to the agreements, the consideration for the
acquisition was contingent on, inter alia, specified levels of
net profits being achieved by the GoHi Group in future
periods and was to be satisfied in the following manner:

(i) Issue of 200,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) at each of the next three anniversary dates
after completion, subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions as stipulated in the agreements.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

35. ¥BEHE)

(b)

()

(d)

BEIMEE RIS S ERITER/RA
B2 ()
WMZEEAHER=_E——F—A
—BAEN  AEEZEEER AL
10,357,00078 7T * MEEEIEEA
#937,080,000/87C - EERAE * &
L[ HZ BT R ABRBFEENE
ZEHEEEEZBBTENH A
RIRERRE 2 LB B AE R, o

BEHRYINAFIRESHERATZ
s
R-ZT——FMA+AHE  ANEH
BB ARRINFRE A
BRAR(AIREOR e ESBREE
BRATN49% #E - MEREBA
REATRERIETL) °

KEEGoHisEE
REBEE_TT+LF+-_A=+—H
LEFER  ARAREREZERBA
A SEBRERAREEEFRA
A(EAFDREXHEE(TER
A DEiUkEEGoHI Holdings Limited
EHEETRATLAMR=—EE
+tFt+tA+—BZEEHZE(KR
HAEZZTTLFLA=THAZHR
W MEE]) ° GoHi Holdings
Limted R E2 BB AR HEEFH
ORI BR AR (T GoH
£B D EBEB AR RIRER
EE AR

REZ S WEAERT (R
I EIE) GoHi SR BN R R M E =2
KB EMMKFET - WAFIRA
WZESAE

) REXRBRR=ZBAFESZEE
ym B #A%£17 200,000,000 A& A%
NERAR EBREEO0.01 %
TCZ RS ([RERD D)
WEREFZE RG] A TI&
HEERE - FRIER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(d)

Acquisition of the GoHi Group (continued)

(ii) Grant of an option (the “Option”) to the Warrantor to
subscribe for a maximum of 60,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Option Shares”) at an exercise price of HK$0.15
per Option Share, in which 20,000,000 Option
Shares were exercisable at each of the next three
anniversary dates after completion, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the
agreements.

@iy~ Issue of a maximum of 160,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Bonus Shares”) at each of the next three
anniversary dates after completion, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the
agreements. The actual number of Bonus Shares to
be issued for each period, if any, would be based
on the excess of the actual net profits being
achieved by the GoHi Group in future periods over
the net profit guarantee given by the Seller and the
Warrantor and the Company’s share prices in future
periods.

Completion of the aforesaid acquisition took place on 16
November 2007. The fair value of the Consideration
Shares to be issued was based on the published price of
the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 16 November 2007. The fair value of the Option had
been included in the cost of combination at the time of
initially accounting for the combination to the extent the
adjustment to the cost of combination was considered
probable, and such fair value was estimated by reference
to an independent professional valuation which
incorporated an option pricing model with annual risk free
rate of 2.67%, volatility of 106.67%, dividend yield of 0%
and other parameters according to the terms of the
agreements. The fair value of the Bonus Shares to be
issued had not been included in the cost of the
combination at the time of initially accounting for the
combination as it could not be measured reliably.

BENEAKREEARLT

35. ¥EBEHE)

(d)

WBEGoHiEE (&)
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BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Disposal of equity interest of Shenzhen First China
Financial Information Company Limited

On 19 November 2012, the Group disposed of 51%
equity interest of R EEIEEEBHPRAF (transliterated
as Shenzhen First China Financial Information Company
Limited) and its subsidiaries at a cash consideration of
RMB550,800 (equivalent to HK$682,700).

(@)

36. HEMEBAS

(@)

HEFIISFEREERERATZ
e N
RZZE——F+—A+hH &%
Eiz3E & KB AR550,8007T (17
E1682,7007% 70 ) & FII B
KEEERARRENBAGZ
51%A% AN ©

HK$
BT
Consideration receivable Y (KB 682,700

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control

RRiEHEZEERBRZOH

was lost:
HKS
BT
Current assets HREEE
Inventories FE 206,037
Trade receivables FEYBR X 119,015
Prepayments, deposits TARFRIE ~ RE R A A FEWGRIE
and other receivables 2,924,189
Bank balances and cash IRITHE R MRS 375,364
Non-current assets RHEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R R 83,199
Goodwill EES 85,473
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals EAth S 5RIA R BT 5RIE (2,189,422)
Amount due to immediate holding FERT EEER A RIRIA
company (8,056,555)
Net liabilities disposed of BHEBETRE (6,452,700)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMBASEE)
(a) Disposal of equity interest of Shenzhen First China (a) HEFINHEMEEEFRATZ
Financial Information Company Limited (continueqd) AR (2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBATZEE :
HK$
BIT
Consideration receivable sz RAE 682,700
Net liabilities disposed of EHEREFHE 6,452,700
Release of amount due to immediate fRER B EEIERA R 2
holding company FRIE (8,056,555)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR I A (3,978,222)
Cumulative exchange differences BitEN EEAERENSE
reclassified from equity to profit or &8z
loss 544,796
(4,354,581)
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBATZIRE i E3E -
HK$
BIT
Cash consideration received BUERESRE =
Less: Bank balances and cash B BHERITERKEIRS
disposed of (875,364)
(875,364)

BENEAKXEEBRLTE —T—"F5FH
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HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMBASE)
(b) Disposal of equity interest of First China Convoy (b) HEFRINEEREREELHRS
Insurance Broker Company Limited, Shenzhen Bl Z A ER
On 1 March 2011, the Group disposed of its entire equity R-ZZE—F=H—H  ~EEI
interest in FIIEEREFERELER AR (transliterated ReREARE4,000,0007T(HEE
as First China Convoy Insurance Broker Company Limited, 1 4,811,1607%8 ) HEE KN RYIE
Shenzhen) at a cash consideration of RMB4,000,000 ERARBELBR AR 2 2ER
(equivalent to HK$4,811,160). RS ©
Consideration received: FEW 2 1B -
HK$
BIT
Consideration received Rl Z RAE 4,811,160
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control BREHECEERBREZO :
was lost:
HK$
BIT
Current assets MENEE
Trade receivables JEHBR TR 1,469
Other receivables E A e Y zkIE 548,179
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 493,605
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Vs - R R 94,869
Current liabilities mENE &
Other payables H th e FRIA (88,914)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 1,049,208

1 46 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—

36.

37.

B——Ft+-A=+—HIFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of equity interest of First China Convoy
Insurance Broker Company Limited, Shenzhen
(continued)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

36.

HEMBAE(E)
(b) HERNEERERRELCARL
BlzRixAtEs (E)

HE—XMEBEAEZHE

HKS$

BT

Consideration received s RAE 4,811,160
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFAE (1,049,208)
Non-controlling interests IR S 209,842
3,971,794

Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary:

HE—RMBASIZEEKHZ
f#:

HK$

BIT

Cash consideration received BURSR(E 4,811,160
Less: Bank balances and cash B BERERITERERS

disposed of (493,605)

4,317,555

WARRANTS RESERVE

On 29 December 2011, the Company issued an aggregate of
800,000,000 warrants by way of placing. The holders of the
warrants have the right to subscribe for 800,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.124 per share within 3 years from the date of issue.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 800,000,000
(2011: 800,000,000) warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of
these warrants would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 800,000,000 (2011:
800,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$8,000,000 (2011: HK$8,000,000)
and share premium of HK$91,200,000 (2011: HK$91,200,000).

BENEAKREEARLT

37.

SRR ERE A
RZZE——F+=—A=+N1B ' ~xRH
LARE & 75 2038774 ££800,000,000 15 32 %
HE o  RREEREABENREZETHR
= FARNTREBEER0.124BTRE
2K/ &1800,000,0000% i A% °

R-BE——F+-_A=+—H ' KAAA
£800,000,000 (=& —— 4 :
800,000,000 17 ) (8 R TR RIKIERE © 7E
ANARE AT ZBRAEET - RREFD
EEBEHTHE  H2AXRAEEFET
800,000,000 (= &F — — & :
800,000,000 %) BESNEBAL + PA K AR AR
K B4 % (8 5 Rl1H#8 50 8,000,000 7 78 (=
T ——4 :8,000,0008 )R
91,200,000 (=& ——F :
91,200,000/ 7T ) °
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EES

38.

—E——F+-A=t+—HIFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of rented premises as follows:

38.

L RE

AEBEERFREAN
R=F—=—F+-_A=+—H  £5£H
B IE Al JSH A = A L s T R ¥ R
ZARRESEAEREAENT ¢

The Group
AEE
2012 2011
ks —T——%F
HK$ HK$
I BT
No later than one year —F A 76,867 2,858,312
Later than one year and no later than —FEKEAER

five years — 68,125
76,867 2,926,437

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to two (2011: two) years.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2012, the Group had future minimum rental
payments receivable under certain non-cancellable leases as
follows:

HRRAEME BB FARER —=
ME(CE——F  BF)

AKEEAHEAN
RZE——F+-_A=+—8  £5E
AT RAIFEAE T 2R REKAES
HIESRELT -

The Group
FEE
2012 2011
—E—=-F —T—%
HK$ HK$
I BT
No later than one year —FR 1,185,600 851,200
Later than one year and no later than —FERAER

five years — —
1,185,600 851,200

The Group leases its investment property (Note 18) under
operating lease arrangement which runs for an initial period of
one year (2011: two years), without an option to renew the
lease terms at the expiry date. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

The Company did not have significant operating lease
commitments at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. EXHHAEALRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere BRUtARE M BmEREMEGFTHEE RS
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the KEEepoN  REBRFERNEIZUATER
following significant related party transactions during the year: BREALTRS :
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—=F —=——fF
Note HK$ HKS$
B e I 78T
Brokerage commission income BESFWHELASRA
received from directors (i) 1,267 11,816
Advertising services income WERE R ERESREBA
received from Guangdong
Brightzone (i) - 1,025,034
Consultancy fee income received — WEUERIERZAE WA
from Guangdong Brightzone (i) - 2,190,231
Office rentals paid to Shenzhen XN TRIITEERERR
Guangxin Investment Company NEZRAERS
Limited (i - 052,586
Office rentals paid to closely family X EE—FZEHFZPHAE
member of a director e (ii) 950,572 976,194
Sales of software to an associate  [A]— B & A 7 4 E B+ (ii) - 10,825,110
Sales agency fee paid to THERBRHEREE
Guangdong Brightzone (iii) 602,125 178,266
2012 2011
—F—=-F —E——fF
HK$ HK$
I vy
Key management compensation FEEEAB ZH
— Salaries and other short-term — e kAR HESER
employee benefits 3,519,000 3,411,766
— Post-employment benefits — [EREER 41,250 36,000
3,560,250 3,447,766
BHERREEEERAR —Z— 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——+-_A=1+—RIFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39. EXHREALTRB(E)

(continued)
Notes:

0] The commission rates were substantially in line with those normally offered
by the Group to third party clients. As at 31 December 2012, the
outstanding balances with these related parties amounted to HK$2,528
(2011: HK$3,442) in aggregate, which were included in the amounts
payable to cash clients and margin clients arising from securities broking
(Note 28). The amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one or two trade days after the trade execution date.

(ii) The advertising services income, consultancy fee income, office rentals and
sales of software were based on terms agreed between the parties
involved.

(iii) On 26 March 2011, Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone pursuant
to which Guangdong Brightzone has agreed to provide a platform to
Wealth Alliance, and be responsible for, the sales and marketing of the
stock investment analysis software and software packages developed and
owned by the Group and, in return, Guangdong Brightzone is entitled to
receive a sales agency fee from Wealth Alliance subject to and upon the
terms contained in the agreement (the “Sales Agency Agreement”).
Guangdong Brightzone is owned as to 88.75% by Shenzhen Guangxin
and 11.25% by independent third parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin is controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen Dongjin
is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming (who is a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and is therefore an associate of a connected
person of the Company as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Accordingly, the transactions
between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong Brightzone under the Sales
Agency Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions on the
part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$57,130,000 (2011: HK$57,130,000) to a bank in respect of
general banking facility granted to three of its subsidiaries.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, such facility was not
utilized by the subsidiaries (2011: Nil). In the opinion of the
directors, no material liabilities will arise from the above
corporate guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of
business and fair value of the corporate guarantee granted by
the Company is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—

40.

B——Ft+-A=+—HIFE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 February 2013, the Group (as vendor) entered into a
binding provisional agreement with an independent third party (as
purchaser) regarding the disposal of the Group’s investment
property at a cash consideration of HK$56,000,000. Completion
is expected to take place on or before 31 May 2013.

40. IREHIEREIE
R-ZB—=F_A=+=-0  A&EEUE
BEH)BEBYE=F(EAE )V A
HRDERDE  NAB@EARSRE
56,000,000 B THEARER ZKEY
2 - HEBHPR T =FRA=1—
Bk Z BIFERK °

BEMERKXEEERLAR —FT—"FFH
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B 5 Bt &

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group &8k B FRITHA TR ERBIZG AU HRER 2 A%
for the last five financial years as extracted from the published audited E:BEREATKRFEEEUNEERBBEHE
consolidated financial statements is set out below: YT -

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HIL=FE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
=B——-F —T—F ZZTITF ZTThFE ZZTN\F
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 78T BIT BIT STT
RESULTS ES
Revenue EER 10,350,363 12,686,091 48,989,233 85,320,229 72,155,034
(Loss)/profit before BRET1SE A
income tax (E518), &7 (39,589,171) (34,727,222) (250,567,434) 10,699,895 (619,865,676)
Income tax credit/ FriSfiEe,”
(expense) (Fx) 181,522  (4,702,505) 31,927,626  (7,654,821) (6,410,352)

(Loss)/profit for the year @FR(E518), %F|  (39,407,649) (39,429,727) (218,639,808) 3,045,074 (626,276,028)

Attributable to: FE1G :
Owners of the Company AR EIHHEA A (39,019,328) (37,855,857) (215,332,026) 3,404,795 (626,262,225)
Non-controlling interests FEFEASAEZS (388,321) (1,573,870) (3,307,782 (359,721) (13,803)

(39,407,649) (39,429,727) (218,639,808) 3,045,074 (626,276,028)

As at 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HILEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
- —T—F ZZTTF ZTThF ZZTTN\F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
I 75T BIT BIT STT
ASSETS, LIABILITIES #&E - BER
AND NON- eI
CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
Total assets BEBE 146,521,839 195,251,602 215,767,840 336,728,989 173,262,594
Total liabilities afEgEm (48,379,794) (61,807,003) (43,531,038) (173,836,780) (17,491,784)
Non-controlling interests FEHEA% iz (1) 3,557,730  (2,889,706) (664,922) (71,693)

98,142,044 137,002,329 169,347,096 162,227,287 155,699,117

1 52 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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